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Part |
Item 1: Business
The Company and Subsidiaries

Blue Valley Ban Corp. ("Blue Valley" or the "Compdh is a financial holding company organized in 298
The Company's primary wholly-owned subsidiary, BahBlue Valley (the "Bank"), was also organizedl®89 to
provide banking services to closely-held businessed their owners, professionals and residentsolmsbn
County, Kansas, a high growth, demographicallyaative area within the Kansas City, Missouri - Kass
Metropolitan Statistical Area (the "Kansas City M3AThe focus of Blue Valley has been to take algge of the
current and anticipated growth in our market areavell as to serve the needs of small and mid-sizadmercial
borrowers — customers that we believe currentlyusgerserved as a result of banking consolidatiaté industry
generally and within our market specifically. Iddiion, Blue Valley has established a nationalspree by
originating residential mortgages nationwide thiotige Bank’s InternetMortgage.com website.

We have experienced significant internal growttcsiour inception. As of December 31, 2007, we $iad
banking center locations in Johnson County, Kansafyding our main office and a mortgage operatioffice in
Overland Park, both of which include lobby bankoenters, and full-service offices in Leawood, Leme®lathe
and Shawnee, Kansas.

Our lending activities focus on commercial lendimgd to a lesser extent, consumer lending, resalent
mortgage origination services and leasing. Weestio identify, develop and maintain diversifiedds of business
which provide acceptable risk-adjusted returns.r @umary lines of business consist of commerceiding,
commercial real estate lending, construction legdiease financing, residential real estate lendoapsumer
lending, and home equity loans.

We also seek to develop lines of business whichrdify our revenue sources, increase our non-isttémeome
and offer additional value-added services to ostamers. We develop these new or existing lindsusiness while
monitoring related risk factors. In addition t@$egenerated in conjunction with our lending atiési we derive
non-interest income by providing mortgage origioatservices, deposit and cash management seringesfment
brokerage services and trust services.

In addition to the Bank, as of December 31, 200&, had three wholly-owned subsidiaries: Blue Valley
Building Corp., which owns the buildings and reabgerty that comprise our headquarters, mortgagzabpns
facility and the Leawood banking center; and BVB@pfal Trust Il and BVBC Capital Trust Ill, whichenre
created to offer the Company’s trust preferred stes and to purchase our junior subordinated delves.

We also have a 49% ownership in Homeland Title, LLlidomeland Title, LLC was established in June 2005
and provides title and settlement services.

Consolidated financial information, including a reeee of profit and loss and total assets can bedau Part
IV of this report.

Our Market Area

We operate primarily as a community bank, servhglianking needs of small- and medium-sized comegani
and individuals in the Kansas City MSA. Specifigabur trade area consists of Johnson County, &ansWe
believe that coupling our strategy of providing epiional customer service and local decision makivith
attractive market demographics has led to the ooatl growth of our total assets and deposits.

The income levels and growth rate of Johnson Cqukpnsas compare favorably to national averages.
Johnson County’s population growth rate ranks enttp 9% of counties nationally, and its per capitmme ranks
in the top 2% of counties nationally. Johnson @gimalso a significant banking market in the Stat Kansas and
in the Kansas City MSA. According to available ustty data, as of June 30, 2007, total deposit3ohmson



County, including those of banks, thrifts and cradiions, were approximately $14.1 billion, whidpresented
26.10% of total deposits in the state of Kansas3h#5% of total deposits in the Kansas City MSA.

As our founders anticipated, the trade area sudiognour main banking facility in Overland Park,ri¢éas has
become one of the most highly developed retail airathe Kansas City MSA. Our Olathe, Kansas itgcis
located approximately 10 miles southwest of ourmudfice and opened in 1994. The Shawnee, Kanaakiig
facility is approximately 20 miles northwest of dueadquarters location. We entered into the Shawrse&et in
1999 and in the first quarter of 2001, constructdrour freestanding banking facility in Shawneesveampleted
and operations commenced in that facility. Thewead, Kansas banking facility is approximately fixgles
southeast of our headquarters location. We entetedhe Leawood market in 2002 and in the seaqmatter of
2004, we completed construction of our freestandisugking facility in Leawood and operations comnszhin that
facility. During 2003 we acquired an office buildiin Overland Park, Kansas approximately one nolehwest of
our headquarters location. At this location, wasmidated our mortgage operations, bank operatars opened a
banking facility. The Lenexa, Kansas banking facis approximately seven miles northwest of oaadiquarters
location. The Lenexa facility was opened in Febyu2007 when we acquired Unison Bancorp, Inc., @sd
subsidiary, Western National Bank. We made thegigsition to continue our expansion in Johnson @pamd to
establish our first presence in the Lenexa market.

Lending Activities

Overview Our principal loan categories include commeraiaimmercial real estate, construction, leasing and
residential mortgages. We also offer a varietgaisumer loans and home equity loans. Our prireatyce of
interest income is interest earned on our loanf@at As of December 31, 2007, our loans représgn
approximately 81.04% of our total assets, our légatling limit to any one borrower was $18.6 milljcand our
largest single borrower as of that date had outétgrioans of $12.8 million.

We have been successful in expanding our loan gdartbecause of the commitment of our staff and the
economic growth in our area of operation. Ourfdtaé significant experience in lending and hasmecessful in
offering our products to both potential and exigtioustomers. We believe that we have been suctessf
maintaining our customers because of our staffenéitteness to their financial needs and the dewveémt of
professional relationships with them. We strivdbézome a strategic business partner with our mes® not just a
source of funds.

We conduct our lending activities pursuant to tbanl policies adopted by our board of directors.esEh
policies currently require the approval of our laammittee of all commercial credits in excess bbdmillion and
all real estate credits in excess of $2.5 milli€@redits up to $1.5 million on commercial loans &2d5 million on
real estate loans can be approved by the Bank'sider# and a combination of two senior loan managgm
officers. Our management information systems aad keview policies are designed to monitor lendinfjiciently
to ensure adherence to our loan policies. Thewvtlg table shows the composition of our loan moidf at
December 31, 2007.



LOAN PORTFOLIO

As of December 31, 2007

Amount Percent
(In thousands)
(070] 1011 4 [=T (o1 = | I $ 139,120 23.32%
Commercial real estate ..........cccceeeevvvvmmmmmcnnen. 150,655 25.25
CONSIIUCHION ... e 188,229 31.55
Lease finanCing.......cccccvveiieiiiiiiiiieieeee e, 19,724 3.30
Residential real estate.............cceeeiiiceeeeeennnnnns 37,511 6.29
CONSUMET ..eiiiieiieeeee et 22,934 3.84
HOME €QUILY .oevvveeeeeee e i e 38,473 6.45
Total loans and leases..........cccceeeeeerennne.. 596,646 100.00%
Less allowance for loan losses............ccuue... 8,982
Loans receivable, net...........cccccccvvvvvvomeimenn... $ 587,664

Commercial loans.As of December 31, 2007, approximately $139.1 anillior 23.32%, of our loan portfolio
represented commercial loans. The Bank has desel@pstrong reputation in providing and servicimgak
business and commercial loans. We have expandegddrtfolio through the addition of commercial diémg staff,
their business development efforts, our reputatind the acquisition of Unison Bancorp, Inc. andsitbsidiary,
Western National Bank, in 2007. Commercial loaagehhistorically been a significant portion of ¢asin portfolio
and we expect to continue our emphasis on this dategory.

The Bank’s commercial lending activities historigdlave been directed to small and medium-sizedpzomies
in or near Johnson County, Kansas, with annuaksgémerally between $100,000 and $20 million. Bhek’'s
commercial customers are primarily firms engagedanufacturing, service, retail, construction, rilisttion and
sales with significant operations in our marketaare The Bank's commercial loans are primarily sediby real
estate, accounts receivable, inventory and equipnaen the Bank may seek to obtain personal gusearfor its
commercial loans. The Bank primarily underwrittssdommercial loans on the basis of the borroweaish flow
and ability to service the debt, as well as thei@adf any underlying collateral and the financiaésgth of any
guarantors.

Approximately $4.7 million, or 3.34%, of our commogl loans are Small Business Administration (SBA)
loans, of which $3.5 million is government guarawote The SBA guarantees the repayment in the efentefault
of a portion of the principal on these loans, gsrued interest on the guaranteed portion ofdha.l Under the
federal Small Business Act, the SBA may guarange®B85% of qualified loans of $150,000 or less apdo 75%
of qualified loans in excess of $150,000, up toaximum guarantee of $2.0 million. We are an acBBA lender
in our market area and have been approved to jpeticin the SBA Certified Lender Program.

Commercial lending is subject to risks specifichie business of each borrower. In order to addhese risks,
we seek to understand the business of each borrplaee appropriate value on any personal guaramteellateral
pledged to secure the loan, and structure thedoaortization to maintain the value of any collateharing the term
of the loan.

Commercial real estate loan¥he Bank also makes loans to provide permanaanfing for retail and office
buildings, multi-family properties and churches.s Af December 31, 2007, approximately $150.7 nmilior
25.25%, of our loan portfolio represented comméroial estate loans. Our commercial real estasmdoare
underwritten on the basis of the appraised valuth@fproperty, the cash flow of the underlying mdyp, and the
financial strength of any guarantors.

Risks inherent in commercial real estate lending @ated to the market value of the property taken
collateral, the underlying cash flows and documtioia Commercial real estate lending involves migsk than
residential real estate lending because loan batan@y be greater and repayment is dependent diothewer’s
operations. We attempt to mitigate these risksdmgfully assessing property values, investigativeysource of
cash flow servicing the loan on the property andeaithg to our lending and underwriting policies gmdcedures.



Construction loans.Our construction loans include loans to develspeome building contractors and other
companies and consumers for the construction oflesifamily homes, land development, and commercial
buildings, such as retail and office buildings andlti-family properties. As of December 31, 20@pproximately
$188.2 million, or 31.55%, of our loan portfoliopresented real estate construction loans. Thealdyuiind
developer loan portfolio has been a consistent comapt of our loan portfolio over our history. Weriaute this
success to our expertise, availability and prongpvise. The Bank’s experience and reputation is #nea have
grown, thereby enabling the Bank to focus on refethips with a smaller number of larger builderd antreasing
the total value of the Bank’s real estate consimagbortfolio. Construction loans are made to digal builders to
build houses to be sold following construction,-podd houses and model houses. These loans asraljg
underwritten based on several factors, including ekperience and current financial condition of blogrowing
entity, amount of the loan to appraised value, gaderal conditions of the housing market with respe the
subdivision and surrounding area, which the backives from a third party reporting entity. Constion loans
are also made to individuals for whom houses aigbeonstructed by builders with whom the Bank aa®xisting
relationship. Such loans are made on the basikeoindividual’s financial condition, the loan talue ratio, the
reputation of the builder, and whether the indiabwill be pre-qualified for permanent financing.

Risks related to construction lending include assent of the market for the finished product, reasteness
of the construction budget, ability of the borrowerfund cost overruns, and the borrower’s abiiityiquidate and
repay the loan at a point when the loan-to-valtie ia the greatest. We seek to manage theselrisksmong other
things, ensuring that the collateral value of theperty throughout the construction process doésfaibbelow
acceptable levels, ensuring that funds disbursednithin parameters set by the original constructiodget, and
properly documenting each construction draw.

Lease financing.Our lease portfolio includes capital leases thathaee originated and leases that we have

acquired from brokers or third parties. As of Daber 31, 2007, our lease portfolio totaled $19.Mfani, or 3.30%

of our total loan portfolio, consisting of $14.4lkwin principal amount of leases originated by usl 5.3 million
principal amount of leases that we purchased. \Wwige lease financing for a variety of equipmenda
machinery, including office equipment, heavy equit telephone systems, tractor trailers and coenput.ease
terms are generally from three to five years. Mpmaent believes this area is attractive becausts aibility to
provide a source of both interest and fee inco@er leases are generally underwritten based upgeralefactors,
including the overall credit worthiness, experieacal current financial condition of the lessee, dheount of the
financing to collateral value, and general condgiof the market.

The primary risks related to our lease portfolie #ne value of the underlying collateral and spedaitsks
related to the business of each borrower. To addileese risks, we attempt to understand the lssioeeach
borrower, value the underlying collateral approf@liaand structure the loan amortization to ensha¢ the value of
the collateral exceeds the lease balance durintgtheof the lease.

Residential real estate loansOur residential real estate loan portfolio catssgrimarily of first and second
mortgage loans on residential properties. As afebgber 31, 2007, $37.5 million, or 6.29%, of owrgortfolio
represented residential mortgage loans. The tefrtteese loans typically include 2-5 year ballooymants based
on a 15 to 30 year amortization, and accrue intexiea fixed or variable rate. By offering thegseducts, we can
offer credit to individuals who are self-employed lmave significant income from partnerships or Btugents.
These individuals are often unable to satisfy théemwriting criteria permitting the sale of theiortgages into the
secondary market.

In addition, we also originate residential mortgdgans with the intention of selling these loanstiie
secondary market. During 2007, we originated axprately $185.8 million of residential mortgage fsaand we
sold approximately $196.6 million in the secondargrket. We originate conventional first mortgageris through
our internet website as well as through referradenfreal estate brokers, builders, developersy pstomers and
media advertising. We have offered customers thbtyalbo apply for mortgage loans and to pre-qualfbr
mortgage loans over the Internet since 1999. O12%e expanded our internet mortgage applicatigracity with
the acquisition of the internet domain name Inttvimetgage.com and created a separate National ldgetg
division. The timing of this expansion allowed oseistablish this division in a relatively low-ra&evironment, and
reap the benefits of a significant increase in gage originations and refinancing experienced fag1 through
2003. While the volume of mortgage originations aefinancing has declined since 2004, we contiruugake



advantage of the national presence establishedewiqus years and originate residential mortgagadothrough
our InternetMortgage.com website. The originatiéra anortgage loan from the date of initial applicatthrough

closing normally takes 15 to 60 days. We acqurgvard commitments from investors on mortgage Idhas we

intend to sell into the secondary market to redaterest rate risk on mortgage loans to be solthénsecondary
market.

Our mortgage loan credit review process is consistéth the standards set by traditional secondaayket
sources. We review appraised value and debt seraigs, and we gather data during the undengriirocess in
accordance with various laws and regulations gamgrreal estate lending. Loans originated by thekBare sold
with servicing released to increase current incame reduce the costs associated with retainingcéegvrights.
Commitments are obtained from the purchasing imvesh a loan-by-loan basis on a 30, 45 or 60-ddivety
commitment. Interest rates are committed to thedveer when a rate commitment is obtained fromitivestor.
Loans are funded by the Bank and purchased by rthestor within 30 days following closing pursuant t
commitments obtained at the time of originatione ¥éll conventional conforming loans and all lotra are non-
conforming as to credit quality to secondary maikeestors for cash on a limited recourse basisnséquently,
foreclosure losses on all sold loans are primahnéyresponsibility of the investor and not thathaf Bank.

As with other loans to individuals, the risks rethto residential mortgage loans include primatily value of
the underlying property and the financial strergytd employment stability of the borrower. We apéeto manage
these risks by performing a pre-funding underwgitthat consists of the verification of employmend aitilizes a
detailed checklist of loan qualification requirertgenincluding the source and amount of down paymemank
accounts, existing debt and overall credit.

Consumer loans. As of December 31, 2007, our consumer loans @t&22.9 million, or 3.84% of our total
loan portfolio. A substantial part of this amowainsisted of installment loans to individuals irr ovarket area.
Installiment lending offered directly by the Bankdar market area includes automobile loans, reionest vehicle
loans, home improvement loans, unsecured linesaditcand other loans to professionals, people eyeul in
education, industry and government, as well aseeindividuals and others. A significant portiohooair consumer
loan portfolio consists of indirect automobile Igavffered through automobile dealerships locatémaily in our
trade area. As of December 31, 2007, approxim&tedy7 million, or 1.79%, of our total loan porifofepresented
indirect automobile loans. Our loans made throtig$ program generally represent loans to purchaseor late
model automobiles. There are currently 12 deaigsgbarticipating in this program. Our consumed ather loans
are underwritten based on the borrower’s incomegeot debt, past credit history, collateral, anel taputation of
the originating dealership with respect to indir@gtomobile loans.

Consumer loans are subject to the same risks a&s loténs to individuals, including the financialestgth and
employment stability of the borrower. In additi@mme consumer loans are subject to the additiisiakhat the
loan is not secured by collateral. For some ofltlas that are secured, the underlying collater@y be rapidly
depreciating and not provide an adequate sourcepafyment if we are required to repossess theteddla We
attempt to mitigate these risks by requiring a dpayment and carefully verifying and documenting llorrower’s
credit quality, employment stability, monthly incemmand with respect to indirect automobile loamsjesstanding
and documenting the value of the collateral and-¢ipeitation of the originating dealership.

Home equity loansAs of December 31, 2007, our home equity loandedt&38.5 million, or 6.45% of our
total loan portfolio. Home equity loans are geitgraecured by second liens on residential reahtesand are
underwritten in a similar manner as our consumanso

Investment Activities

The objectives of our investment policies are to:
» secure the safety of principal;
e provide adequate liquidity;

» provide securities for use in pledging for publionds or repurchase agreements; and



* maximize after-tax income.

We invest primarily in obligations of agencies bé&tUnited States and bank-qualified obligationstafe and
local political subdivisions. Although direct ofpitions of the United States and obligations guasghas to
principal and interest by the United States arenfiézd by our investment policy, we currently da hold any in
our portfolio. In order to ensure the safety ohpipal, we typically do not invest in mortgage-kad securities,
corporate debt, or other securities even though #éine permitted by our investment policy. In aubif we enter
into federal funds transactions with our principafrespondent banks, and depending on our liqujstigition, act
as a net seller or purchaser of these funds. aledf federal funds is effectively a short-ternardofrom us to
another bank; while conversely, the purchase oérf@dfunds is effectively a short-term loan fronother bank to
us.

Deposit Services

The principal sources of funds for the Bank areecdeposits from the local market areas surrounthieg
Bank’s offices, including demand deposits, intetestring transaction accounts, money market acspsgatings
deposits and time deposits. Transaction accountade interest-bearing and non-interest-bearimg@ats, which
provide the Bank with a source of fee income arabsimarketing opportunities as well as a low-cosiree of
funds. Since 2001, the Bank has realized a sagrifilevel of deposit growth from commercial chegkaccounts.
While these accounts do not earn interest, maitlgesh receive an earnings credit on their averaggba to offset
the cost of other services provided by the Banke Bank’s money market account is a daily accessumt that
bears a higher rate and allows for limited checkimg ability. This account pays a tiered rateimterest. We
believe money market accounts have proven to bactitte products in our market area and provideitis a more
attractive source of funds than other alternatistesh as Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, asoiiges us
with the potential to cross-sell additional sergic®® these account holders. During 2007, we iniced
performance checking accounts. This interest-hgatemand product has also proven to be an atteggtoduct in
our market area as it pays a higher rate than of@stking accounts as long as the customer meetedn@ements
of at least 12 signature based debit card tramsactnd at least one direct deposit or ACH delih edatement
cycle. The Bank realizes non-interest income fithm signature based debit card transactions thHagnwetted
against the high rate paid to the customer, results very attractive low cost of funds for the RanTime and
savings accounts also provide a relatively stabktammer base and source of funding. Because afidhee and
behavior of these deposit products, managemergwsvand analyzes our pricing strategy in companmgronly to
competitor rates, but also as compared to otherrative funding sources to determine the most @dgeous
source. The Bank has joined the Certificate of&@pAccount Registry Service (“CDARS”) which effaely lets
depositors receive FDIC insurance on amounts latigen $100,000. CDARS allows the Bank to breakdar
deposits into smaller amounts and place them iretavark of other CDARS banks to ensure that full €DI
insurance coverage is gained on the entire dep®@sie Bank’s Funds Management policy allows foreptance of
brokered deposits which can be utilized to supghertgrowth of the Bank. As of December 31, 208&,Bank had
$31.5 million in brokered deposits. The Bank dowd anticipate brokered deposits becoming a sicanifi
percentage of its deposit base; however, we comtialevaluate their potential role in the Bank'®m@i funding
and liquidity strategies. In pricing deposit ratemnagement considers profitability, the matclohgerm lengths
with assets, the attractiveness to customers des offered by our competitors.

Investment Brokerage Services

In 1999, the Bank began offering investment brofferaervices through an unrelated broker-dealeres@h
services are currently offered at all of our losas. Three individuals responsible for providingsé services are
joint employees of the Bank and the registered drralealer. Investment brokerage services provisieuace of fee
income for the Bank. In 2007, the amount of owg fiecome generated from investment brokerage sswas
$395,000.

Trust Services
We began offering trust services in 1996. UntiBQ9the Bank’s trust services were offered excligiv

through the employees of an unaffiliated trust canmyp The Bank hired a full-time officer in 1999develop the
Bank’s trust business and the trust department maswthree full-time officers. Trust services ar@rketed to both



existing Bank customers and new customers. We\elthat the ability to offer trust services asaat pf our
financial services to new customers of the Banlsgmés a significant cross-marketing opportunityhe Bervices
currently offered by the Bank’s trust departmentlide the administration of personal trusts, inwestt
management agency accounts, self-directed indiviceteement accounts, qualified retirement plaostporate
trust accounts and custodial and directed trusbwats. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank’s tregiagtment
administered 237 accounts, with assets under asimdtion of approximately $104.2 million. Trustngees
provide the Bank with a source of fee income anditamhal deposits. In 2007, the amount of ourifeme from
trust services was $427,000.

Competition

We encounter competition primarily in seeking defsosnd in obtaining loan customers. The level of
competition for deposits in our market area is highur principal competitors for deposits are otfirancial
institutions within a few miles of our locationsclading other banks, savings institutions and d¢reulions.
Competition among these institutions is based pilynan interest rates offered, the quality of seevprovided, and
the convenience of banking facilities. Additiomampetition for depositors’ funds comes from U.8veynment
securities, private issuers of debt obligations atier providers of investment alternatives foratgiors.

We compete in our lending, investment brokerage teust activities with other financial institutionsuch as
banks and thrift institutions, credit unions, autdrite financing companies, mortgage companies, rgegsifirms,
investment companies and other finance comparitmy of our competitors are not subject to the saxiensive
federal regulations that govern bank holding congmand federally-insured banks and state regulatimverning
state-chartered banks. As a result, these non-bamipetitors have some advantages over us in pnovicertain
products and services. Many of the financial tnftns with which we compete are larger and passgeater
financial resources, name recognition and marketece.

Employees

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had approximatel Ridl-time employees. The Company and its other
subsidiaries did not have any employees. Noneh@fBank’'s employees are subject to a collectivegdiaing
agreement. We consider the Bank’s relationship itétemployees to be excellent.

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

For each of our directors and our executive officave have set forth below their ages as of Dece@be
2007, and their principal positions.



Name Age Positions

Directors

Robert D. Regnier .........cccccouuiiiiiiiicec e 59 President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairrofthe
Board of Directors of Blue Valley; President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Bank

Donald H. Alexander..........ccccuuvveeeeeeeemmmmmeneeens 69 Director of Blue Valley and the Bank

Michael J. Brown..........ccccccvvvvvvvieemmeeeeneeenenneeen, 51 Director of Blue Valley

Thomas A. McDonnell ...........ccccocvviiiiiicecenennen, 62 Director of Blue Valley

ANNE D. St. Peter......vvviiviiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeecee e, 42 Director of Blue Valley

Robert D. Taylor......coovveeeeieiie e, 60 Director of Blue Valley

Additional Directors of the Bank

Harvey S. Bodker Director of the Bank
Richard L. Bond .........oooovviiiiiiiiieeee e, Director of the Bank
Suzanne E. DOtSON.........cccvveeeeiiiviiemenn e 61 Director of the Bank
Charles H. HUNET ......oiiiiiii i, 65 Director of the Bank

Executive Officers who are not Directors

Mark A. FOrtiNO ........coovcuiieieiiiiiee e 41 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offick
the Bank; Chief Financial Officer of Blue Valley

Ralph J. Schramp............ooooeeiivvereeeeeee, 58 Senior Vice President — Commercial Lending,
Mortgage Originations and Business Development for
the Bank

Sheila C. StOKES.......cvvvceiieiieieeeiiieeeeeee, 46 Senior Vice President — Retail Division of thenk

Regulation and Supervision

Blue Valley and its subsidiaries are extensivelgutated under both federal and state laws. Laws an
regulations to which Blue Valley and the Bank aubjsct govern, among other things, the scope ofbss,
investments, reserve levels, capital levels retativ operations, the nature and amount of collaferdoans, the
establishment of branches, mergers and consolidatiod the payment of dividends. These laws agalagons
are intended primarily to protect depositors, rtotkholders. Any change in applicable laws or ragohs may
have a material effect on Blue Valley's business prospects, and legislative and policy changes afifegt Blue
Valley's operations. Blue Valley cannot predice thature or the extent of the effects on its bussirend earnings
that fiscal or monetary policies, economic contarisiew federal or state legislation may have @nftiure.

The following references to statutes and regulatiaffecting Blue Valley and the Bank are brief suames
only and do not purport to be complete and areifigihiin their entirety by reference to the statuséad regulations.

Applicable Legislation

The enactment of legislation described below hgsifitantly affected the banking industry generalhyd will
have an on-going effect on Blue Valley and its glibses.

USA PATRIOT Act. The USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 was signed into law @utober 26, 2001. This
legislation enhances the powers of domestic lavoreefnent organizations and makes numerous othergeka
aimed at countering the international terrorise#itrto the security of the United States. Titleoflthe legislation
most directly affects the financial services indystlt is intended to enhance the federal govemtaeability to
fight money laundering by monitoring currency tractions and suspicious financial activities. Th&AU



PATRIOT Act has significant implications for depimsy institutions involved in the transfer of moneynder the
USA PATRIOT Act, a financial institution must estsh due diligence policies, procedures, and cdstro
reasonably designed to detect and report moneyd&ing through correspondent accounts and privatikihg
accounts. Financial institutions must follow reggidns adopted by the Treasury Department to eageufinancial
institutions, their regulatory authorities, and l@anforcement authorities to share information akiodividuals,
entities, and organizations engaged in or suspeaftezhgaging in terrorist acts or money launderéngvities.
Financial institutions must follow regulations #&gt forth minimum standards regarding customer tifieation.
These regulations require financial institutiongrplement reasonable procedures for verifyingitlemtity of any
person seeking to open an account, maintain reaafrélse information used to verify the person’sritiy, and
consult lists of known or suspected terrorists &torist organizations provided to the financiastitution by
government agencies. Every financial institutionstmestablish anti-money laundering programs, ol the
development of internal policies and proceduresjgiation of a compliance officer, employee tragpiand an
independent audit function.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act was signed into law Movember 12, 1999. This
major banking legislation expands the permissilaviies of bank holding companies such as Bludleyaby
permitting them to engage in activities, or affdiawith entities that engage in activities, thag &financial in
nature." Activities that the Act expressly deem$e financial in nature include, among other thjrggcurities and
insurance underwriting and agency, investment mamagt and merchant banking. The Federal Reservehand
Treasury Department, in cooperation with one amptietermine what additional activities are “finedén nature.”
With certain exceptions, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Agnilarly expands the authorized activities of sidtaries of
national banks. The provisions of the Gramm-LeBtkey Act authorizing the expanded powers becafifiecéve
March 11, 2000.

Bank holding companies that intend to engage iivities that are “financial in nature” must electtbecome
“financial holding companies.” Financial holdingrapany status is only available to a bank holdimgpgany if all
of its affiliated depository institutions are “wethpitalized” and “well managed,” based on applieatanking
regulations, and have a Community Reinvestmentrdtatg of at least “a satisfactory record of megommunity
credit needs.” Financial holding companies and bamky continue to engage in activities that ararfomal in
nature only if they continue to satisfy the welpitalized and well managed requirements. Bankihgldompanies
that do not elect to be financial holding comparieshat do not qualify for financial holding compastatus may
engage only in non-banking activities deemed “dioselated to banking” prior to adoption of the @na-Leach-
Bliley Act.

The Act also calls for "functional regulation" dh&ncial services businesses in which functionedigulated
subsidiaries of bank holding companies will con¢iria be regulated by the regulator that ordindrdg supervised
their activities. As a result, state insuranceutaprs will continue to oversee the activitiesrafurance companies
and agencies, and the Securities and Exchange Gsiomiwill continue to regulate the activities obker-dealers
and investment advisers, even where the companiggemcies are affiliated with a bank holding compaFederal
Reserve authority to examine and adopt rules réggfdnctionally regulated subsidiaries is limited.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act imposed an “affirmatiaed continuing” obligation on all financial service
providers (not just banks and their affiliatessédeguard consumer privacy and requires federastate regulators,
including the Federal Reserve and the FDIC (Fedeeglosit Insurance Corporation), to establish stedsl to
implement this privacy obligation. With certainceptions, the Act prohibits banks from disclosioghon-affiliated
parties any non-public personal information abaitemers unless the bank has provided the custaittecertain
information and the customer has had the oppostuaiprohibit the bank from sharing the informatiaith non-
affiliates. The new privacy obligations becameefffre July 1, 2001.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act has been and may coetittube the subject of extensive rule making byifad
banking regulators and others.

Bank Holding Company Regulation
Blue Valley is a registered bank holding companlyject to periodic examination by the Federal Resemd

required to file periodic reports of its operati@m such additional information as the FederabER@smay require.
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Investments and Activities. A bank holding company must obtain approval fittwn Federal Reserve before:

e Acquiring, directly or indirectly, ownership or dool of any voting shares of another bank or baoklihg
company if, after the acquisition, it would own eontrol more than 5% of the shares of the bankamkb
holding company (unless it already owns or contitedsmajority of the shares);

» Acquiring all or substantially all of the assetsaobther bank or bank holding company; or
» Merging or consolidating with another bank holdamgnpany.

The Federal Reserve will not approve any acquisitinerger or consolidation that would have a sutbistity
anticompetitive result unless the anticompetitivieats of the proposed transaction are clearly eighed by a
greater public interest in meeting the conveniegmg needs of the community to be served. The Be&erserve
also considers capital adequacy and other finaaaidlmanagerial factors in reviewing acquisitionsnergers.

With certain exceptions, a bank holding comparsise prohibited from:

e Acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownerstop control of more than 5% of the voting sharesoy
company that is not a bank or bank holding compang;

» Engaging, directly or indirectly, in any businesisav than that of banking, managing and controlbagks or
furnishing services to banks and their subsidiaries

Bank holding companies may, however, engage imkesses found by the Federal Reserve to be “finkimcia
nature,” as described above. As a financial hgldiompanyBlue Valley is authorized to engage in the expanded
activities permitted under the Gramm-Leach-Blilegt/As long as it continues to qualify for financkalding
company status.

Finally, subject to certain exceptions, the Bankditgg Company Act and the Change in Bank Contrdl Aad
the Federal Reserve’s implementing regulationspireqFederal Reserve approval prior to any acdoisipf
“control” of a bank holding company, such as Bluall®y. In general, a person or company is presutodthve
acquired control if it acquires 10% of the outsiagdshares of a bank or bank holding company awndnslusively
determined to have acquired control if it acqui2&86 or more of the outstanding shares of a barikaok holding
company.

Source of Strength. The Federal Reserve expects Blue Valley to aa asurce of financial strength and
support for the Bank and to take measures to presand protect the Bank in situations where aduftio
investments in the Bank may not otherwise be wéehn The Federal Reserve may require a bank hpldin
company to terminate any activity or relinquish ttohof a non-bank subsidiary (other than a nonkbsubsidiary
of a bank) upon the Federal Reserve’s determinatiah the activity or control constitutes a serigisk to the
financial soundness or stability of any subsididgpository institution of the bank holding companfurther,
federal bank regulatory authorities have additiatiatretion to require a bank holding company tesi itself of
any bank or non-bank subsidiary if the agency deiters that divestiture may aid the depository fngtin’s
financial condition. As of December 31, 2007, BWaley Building Corp., BVBC Capital Trust Il, BVBCapital
Trust 1ll, and Homeland Title, LLC are Blue Vallsydnly active direct subsidiaries that are not lsank

Capital Requirements. The Federal Reserve uses capital adequacy queddli its examination and regulation
of bank holding companies and banks. If the chgdlis below minimum guideline levels, a bank hall
company, among other things, may be denied apprimvalcquire or establish additional banks or nomkba
businesses. The Federal Reserve’s capital guaeéstablish a risk-based requirement expressegpaxentage of
total risk-weighted assets and a leverage requinemepressed as a percentage of total averagesastbe risk-
based requirement consists of a minimum ratio @ toapital to total risk-weighted assets of 8%ywbich at least
one-half must be Tier 1 capital (which consists@pally of stockholders’ equity). The leveragegugement
consists of a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital ttelcaverage assets of 4%.
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The risk-based and leverage standards presentty lms¢he Federal Reserve are minimum requiremenis,
higher capital levels may be required if warranbgdthe particular circumstances or risk profilesimdividual
banking organizations. Further, any banking orz@ion experiencing or anticipating significant gtb would be
expected to maintain capital ratios, including thtegcapital positions, which is Tier 1 capitaldeall intangible
assets, well above the minimum levels.

Dividends. The Federal Reserve has issued a policy statecomeerning the payment of cash dividends by
bank holding companies. The policy statement plesvithat a bank holding company experiencing egsnin
weaknesses should not pay cash dividends exceédimgt income or which could only be funded in wdkat
weakened the bank holding company’s financial healtich as by borrowing. Also, the Federal Respogsesses
enforcement powers over bank holding companiestagid non-bank subsidiaries to prevent or remedipas that
represent unsafe or unsound practices or violatibrapplicable statutes and regulations. Amongdahgowers is
the ability to proscribe the payment of dividengsblanks and bank holding companies.

Bank Regulations

The Bank operates under a Kansas state bank chades subject to regulation by the Office of 8tate Bank
Commissioner and the Federal Reserve Bank. Theeldf the State Bank Commissioner and the FedReakrve
Bank regulate or monitor all areas of the Bank’srafions, including capital requirements, issuaotetock,
declaration of dividends, interest rates, deposésprd keeping, establishment of branches, adouisi mergers,
loans, investments, borrowing, security devices pratedures and employee responsibility and condtidte
Office of the State Bank Commissioner places litiotes on activities of the Bank including the issce of capital
notes or debentures and the holding of real eatadepersonal property and requires the Bank to tadai@ certain
ratio of reserves against deposits. The Officéhef State Bank Commissioner requires the Banklgoafireport
annually showing receipts and disbursements oB#n, in addition to any periodic report requested.

Deposit Insurance. The FDIC, through its Deposit Insurance Funduiies the Bank’s deposit accounts to a
maximum of $100,000 for each insured depositor wie exception of self-directed retirement acceuwrttich are
insured to a maximum of $250,000. The FDIC basgmsit insurance premiums on the perceived risk ®éack
presents to its Deposit Insurance Fund. In adudito deposit insurance premiums, institutions gisy an
assessment based on insured deposits to servideisseled by the Financing Corporation, a federadnay
established to finance the recapitalization offtrvener Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Cormorafi he FDIC
may terminate the deposit insurance of any insdegubsitory institution if the FDIC determines, afeehearing,
that the institution has engaged or is engaginghgafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe aruwntscondition to
continue operations or has violated any applicie regulation, order, or any condition imposedviiting by, or
written agreement with, the FDIC. The FDIC mayoadsispend deposit insurance temporarily duringhtérering
process for a permanent termination of insurantieeifinstitution has no tangible capital. Managehie not aware
of any activity or condition that could result grmination of the deposit insurance of the Bank.

Capital Requirements. The FDIC has established the following minimurpita standards for state-chartered,
insured non-member banks, such as the Bank: lgjesage requirement consisting of a minimum rafidier 1
capital to total average assets of 4%; and (2lkabéased capital requirement consisting of a minimmatio of total
capital to total risk-weighted assets of 8%, atsteane-half of which must be Tier 1 capital. Thespital
requirements are minimum requirements, and highpita levels may be required if warranted by tlaetipular
circumstances or risk profiles of individual ingtibns.

The federal banking regulators also have broad pdwetake “prompt corrective action” to resolve the
problems of undercapitalized institutions. Theeexiof the regulators’ powers depends upon whetieeinstitution
in question is “well capitalized,” “adequately ciglized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly undeapitalized” or
“critically undercapitalized.” Under the prompt cective action rules, an institution is:

*  “Well-capitalized” if the institution has a totabk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tieisk-based
capital ratio of 6% or greater, and a leveragerati5% or greater, and the institution is not sgbjo an
order, written agreement, capital directive, orrppd corrective action directive to meet and mamtai
specific capital level for any capital measure;
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« “Adequately capitalized” if the institution hasatal risk-based capital ratio of 8% or greater,jex T risk-
based capital ratio of 4% or greater, and a leveeratio of 4% or greater;

* “Undercapitalized” if the institution has a totégk-based capital ratio that is less than 8%, a Tiesk-
based capital ratio that is less than 4%, or arémyeratio that is less than 4%;

« “Significantly undercapitalized” if the institutiohas a total risk-based capital ratio that is thas 6%, a
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio that is less thé# 8r a leverage ratio that is less than 3%; and

» “Critically undercapitalized” if the institution Isaa ratio of tangible equity to total assets thaqual to or
less than 2%.

The federal banking regulators must take promptentive action with respect to capital deficiertitutions.
Depending upon the capital category to which atitini®n is assigned, the regulators’ correctivevpecs include:

*  Placing limits on asset growth and restrictiongotivities, including the establishing of new briaes;

» Requiring the institution to issue additional capstock (including additional voting stock) orlie acquired;
» Restricting transactions with affiliates;

» Restricting the interest rate the institution may pn deposits;

* Requiring that senior executive officers or direstoe dismissed,

* Requiring the institution to divest subsidiaries;

»  Prohibiting the payment of principal or interestsubordinated debt; and

»  Appointing a receiver for the institution.

Companies controlling an undercapitalized institatare also required to guarantee the subsidiatitution’s
compliance with the capital restoration plan subfjean aggregate limitation of the lesser of 5%hef institution's
assets at the time it received notice that it wadetcapitalized or the amount of the capital deficy when the
institution first failed to meet the plan. The FedeDeposit Insurance Act generally requires thpaitment of a
conservator or receiver within 90 days after afitutson becomes critically undercapitalized.

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had capital inesx of the requirements for a “well-capitalized”
institution.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation |mprovement Act. The Bank, having over $500 million in total assets
is subject to requirements of Section 112 of thdeffa Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (FDICIA L1Zhe
primary purpose of FDICIA 112 is to provide a framoek for early risk identification in financial magement
through an effective system of internal controls.

Insder Transactions. The Bank is subject to restrictions on extensiginsredit to executive officers, directors,
principal stockholders or any related interesthaelse persons. Extensions of credit must be madelmstantially the
same terms, including interest rates and collatsahe terms available for third parties and mastinvolve more
than the normal risk of repayment or present atidgivorable features. The Bank is also subjelgrtding limits and
restrictions on overdrafts to these persons.

Community Reinvestment Act Requirements. The Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) of 1977 rieggithat, in
connection with examinations of financial instituts within their jurisdiction, the federal bankinggulators must
evaluate the record of the financial institutionsnieeting the credit needs of their local commesijtincluding low
and moderate income neighborhoods, consistenttivttsafe and sound operation of those banks. Theg®s are
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also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitaors applications to open a branch or facility. ittnmost recent
CRA examination dated June 5, 2006, the Bank redeavrating of “Satisfactory.”

State Bank Activities. With limited exceptions, FDIC-insured state barike the Bank, may not make or retain
equity investments of a rate or in an amount thatat permissible for national banks and also mayengage as a
principal in any activity that is not permitted famational bank or its subsidiary, respectiveijless the bank meets,
and continues to meet, its minimum regulatory ehpéquirements and the FDIC determines that tkigitgcwould
not pose a significant risk to the deposit insueafibed of which the bank is a member.

Regulations Governing Extensions of Credit. The Bank is subject to restrictions on extenswmingredit to Blue
Valley and on investments in Blue Valley's secastiand using those securities as collateral fonsloaThese
regulations and restrictions may limit Blue Vallewbility to obtain funds from the Bank for its baseeds, including
funds for acquisitions and for payment of dividenahderest and operating expenses. Further, thek B#olding
Company Act and Federal Reserve regulations pitohibank holding company and its subsidiaries femgaging in
various tie-in arrangements in connection with esiens of credit, leases or sales of property anishing of services.

Reserve Requirements. The Federal Reserve requires all depositorytutisths to maintain reserves against their
transaction accounts. Reserves of 3% must be ama@ck against net transaction accounts of $9.3omito $43.9
million plus 10% must be maintained against thatipo of net transaction accounts in excess $43libm(subject to
adjustment by the Federal Reserve). The balanaggaimed to meet the reserve requirements impogéide Federal
Reserve may be used to satisfy liquidity requiresien

Other Regulations

Interest and various other charges collected otraoted for by the Bank are subject to state utams and
other federal laws concerning interest rates. Baek’s loan operations are also subject to fedaras applicable
to credit transactions. The federal Truth in LexgdAct governs disclosures of credit terms to camesuborrowers.
The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975 requinesirfcial institutions to provide information to d&ha the
public and public officials to determine whethefirgancial institution is fulfilling its obligatiorto help meet the
housing needs of the community it serves. The EGuadit Opportunity Act prohibits discriminatiomdhe basis
of race, creed or other prohibited factors in edbeg credit. The Fair Credit Reporting Act of 193@verns the use
and provision of information to credit reportingeagies. The Fair Debt Collection Act governs thenner in
which consumer debts may be collected by collectigencies. The various federal agencies chargéd the
responsibility of implementing these federal lawavén adopted various rules and regulations. Theosiep
operations of the Bank are also subject to the Righrinancial Privacy Act, which imposes a dutynaintain
confidentiality of consumer financial records andegtribes procedures for complying with administeat
subpoenas of financial records, and the Electréwinds Transfer Act, and Regulation E issued byRederal
Reserve to implement that Act, which govern autdéendéposits to and withdrawals from the use of ATasl
other electronic banking services.

ltem 1A: Risk Factors

Our operations may be adversely affected if weuarable to maintain and increase our deposit basg# secure
adequate funding.

We fund our banking and lending activities primatihrough demand, savings and time deposits and, to
lesser extent, lines of credit, sale/repurchastitfas from various financial institutions, and de¥al Home Loan
Bank borrowings. The success of our business dispienpart on our ability to maintain and increase deposit
base and our ability to maintain access to othedifig sources. Our inability to obtain fundingfamorable terms,
on a timely basis, or at all, would adversely dffaar operations and financial condition.
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The loss of our key personnel could adversely taffecoperations.

We are a relatively small organization and depemdhe services of all of our employees. Our growti
development to date has depended in a large past few key employees who have primary responsibibi
maintaining personal relationships with our largasttomers. The unexpected loss of services ofoormore of
these key employees could have a material advdfset ®n our operations. Our key employees are Robe
Regnier, Mark A. Fortino, Ralph J. Schramp, andilal@. Stokes. Each of these persons is an oftiténe Bank.
We do not have written employment or non-competeemgents with any of these key employees; howefrer,
employment was terminated, Mr. Fortino, Mr. Schrasupd Ms. Stokes would all lose three years of Bladley
Ban Corp. Restricted Stock Awards as well as amwantarded in their Long-Term Retention Bonus Podlb.
Regnier would lose one year of Restricted Stockandunts awarded in his Long-Term Retention Borad.PWe
carry a $1 million “key person” life insurance plion the life of Mr. Regnier.

Changes in interest rates may adversely affecieannings and cost of funds.

Changes in interest rates affect our operatingopeidnce and financial condition in diverse ways. A
substantial part of our profitability depends oa tdifference between the rates we receive on laadsnvestments
and the rates we pay for deposits and other sowfcksmds. Our net interest spread will dependrmany factors
that are partly or entirely outside our controlcliding competition, federal monetary and fiscaligyes, and
economic conditions generally. Historically, neteirest spreads for many financial institutionsenaidened and
narrowed in response to these and other factorighvdre often collectively referred to as “intereste risk.” We
try to minimize our exposure to interest rate rislt are unable to eliminate it.

Because our business is concentrated in the Ka@ggsMSA, a downturn in the economy of the Kansas lISA
may adversely affect our business.

Our success is dependent to a significant exteom tipe general economic conditions in the Kansas I@EA,
including Johnson County, Kansas, and, in partictitee conditions for the medium- and small-sizedibesses that
are the focus of our customer base. Adverse clsaimgeconomic conditions in the Kansas City MSAluding
Johnson County, Kansas, could impair our abilitgdtlect loans, reduce our growth rate and havegative effect
on our overall financial condition.

If our allowance for loan losses is insufficientabsorb losses in our loan portfolio, it will adgety affect our
financial condition and results of operations.

Some borrowers may not repay loans that we maktgetn. This risk is inherent in the banking busiekike
all financial institutions, the Company maintainsalowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses in our
loan portfolio. The level of the allowance reflechanagement’s continuing evaluation of industnycemtrations,
specific credit risks, loan loss experience, curtean portfolio credit quality, economic and regfolry conditions
and unidentified losses inherent in the current Ipartfolio. However, we cannot predict loan lasaéth certainty,
and we cannot assure you that our allowance wiiuféicient. Loan losses in excess of our resewasld have an
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressaf operations. The loan loss provision relatdeal estate
construction loans has increased during the sebaffdof the year. This increase is a result of itigustry wide
decline in the real estate market. If the recemd is prolonged and losses continue to increaseresults of
operations could be negatively impacted by higbanllosses in the future.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as aagral part of the examination process, periodicaiiew our
loan portfolio. These agencies may require usdtbta the allowance for loan losses based on jheégments and
interpretations of information available to themtla¢ time of their examinations. If these agencezgiire us to
increase our allowance for loan losses, our easnwitf be adversely affected in the period in whibtle increase
occurs.
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We may incur significant costs if we foreclose ovinmentally contaminated real estate.

If we foreclose on a defaulted real estate loaretmver our investment, we may be subject to enuiental
liabilities in connection with the underlying realoperty. It is also possible that hazardous sulests or wastes
may be discovered on these properties during oureoship or after they are sold to a third party.they are
discovered on a property that we have acquiredutiirdoreclosure or otherwise, we may be requirecetnove
those substances and clean up the property. Wehaay to pay for the entire cost of any removal ele@n-up
without the contribution of any other third partied/e may also be liable to tenants and other usfengighboring
properties. These costs or liabilities may exdbedfair value of the property. In addition, weyniand it difficult
or impossible to sell the property prior to or éaling any environmental clean-up.

If we are not able to compete effectively in thghhyi competitive banking industry, our busines$ bel adversely
affected.

Our business is extremely competitive. Many of competitors are, or are affiliates of, enterpriges have
greater resources, name recognition and marke¢peceshan we do. Some of our competitors areetpilated as
extensively as we are and, therefore, may havetegrdkexibility in competing for business. Some thlese
competitors are subject to similar regulation bawénthe advantages of established customer bagésy ttending
limits, extensive branch networks, numerous ATM=g] eore ability to absorb the costs of maintairtechnology
or other factors.

ltem 1B: Unresolved Staff Comments

No items are reportable.

tem 2: Properties

The Company’s principal office is located at 1193y on the corner of 11and Riley streets in Overland
Park, Kansas. In addition to the principal offies, of December 31, 2007, the Company also ownskanking
center locations and one mortgage and banking icktgtion and leases unoccupied premises to thicpu

Mortgage Indebtedness

Location Year Occupied | as of December 31, 200Y Occupancy
Overland Park Banking Center
11935 Riley 74%
Overland Park, Kansas 1994 $2.2 Million One sublease occupying 26%

Olathe Banking Center
1235 E. Santa Fe

Olathe, Kansas 2001 None 100%
Shawnee Banking Center
5520 Hedge Lane Terrace
Shawnee, Kansas 2001 None 100%
Mortgage and Banking Cente
7900 College Boulevard

=

Overland Park, Kansas 2003 $3.8 Million 100%

Leawood Banking Center

13401 Mission Road 42%

Leawood, Kansas 2004 None Five subleases occupying 58%

Lenexa Banking Center
9500 Lackman Road
Lenexa, Kansas 2007 None 100%
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Item 3: Legal Proceedings
We are periodically involved in routine litigatiamcidental to our business. We are not a pargnip pending

litigation that we believe is likely to have a m#éadverse effect on our consolidated financtaldition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Item 4: Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secunt Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stoalés, through the solicitation of proxies or othiseyduring
the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered hy thport.
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Part I

ltem 5: Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Market for Common Stock

We are a reporting company under the Securitieb&xge Act as a result of a trust preferred seeariiffering
we completed during July 2000. Shares of our comstock have traded on the Over-The-Counter BalBtard
since July 2002 under the symbol “BVBC.” As of Radiry 29, 2008, there were approximately 184 stoltdrs of
record of our common stock. The following tabléss®rth the high and low prices of the Companyésnmon
stock based on closing stock price quotations pexviby Yahoo.com These prices reflect inter-dealer prices,
without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission amay not necessarily represent actual transactions.

2007 2006
Fiscal Quarte High Low High Low
First $ 3828 $ 335 $ 3200 $ 29.7¢
Seconi 40.0( 33.5( 31.0¢ 28.1¢
Third 38.5( 33.0C 33.0C 28.1¢
Fourtt 36.0( 31.0C 35.0( 33.0(¢

Dividends

Our board of directors declared cash dividendsusrcommon stock as follows:

Declaration Date Amount Per Share Record Date Pay Date

December 15, 20( $0.2¢ December 30, 20( January 3, 200¢
December 21, 20( $0.3( December 29, 20( January 29, 20(
Decembe2(, 20(7 $0.26 Decembe3l, 20(7 Januan31l, 20(8

Because our consolidated net income consists lagjehe net income of the Bank, our ability to phyidends
on our common stock is subject to our receipt viddinds from the Bank. The ability of the Bankpty dividends
to us, and thus our ability to pay dividends to stackholders, is regulated by federal banking lawsaddition, if
we elect to defer interest payments on our outatgnjdinior subordinated debentures, we will be gridld from
paying dividends on our common stock during sudierdal. At December 31, 2007, approximately $4,086 of
retained earnings were available for dividend detian without prior regulatory approval.

Our board of directors intends to declare futurgddinds, subject to limitations imposed by reguatapital
guidelines, in consideration of the Company’s gattility and liquidity.
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Item 6: Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our consolidated fmahdata as of and for the five years ended Deeersit,
2007, and should be read in conjunction with thesotidated financial statements and notes therem a
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finandaindition and Results of Operations,” each of whigh
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The seleddements of financial condition and statemeftsyaome
data, insofar as they relate to the five yearshinfive-year period ended December 31, 2007, haen lnerived

from our audited consolidated financial statements.

As of and for the
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except share and per shéag da
Selected Statement of Income Data
Interest income:
Loans, including fEES ........cccuveiiiii e $ 47194 $ 44537 $ 37,492 $ 29,245 $ 28,293
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing depasits.. 557 256 580 157 49
SECUIMEIES .eeiiiiiieitit e et 4,466 4,039 2,317 2,301 2,070
Total INterest iNCOME .....ccvvvvveeiiiiir e 52,217 48,832 40,389 31,703 30,412
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing demand deposits .. 656 97 94 169 165
Savings and money market deposit accounts 6,362 4,356 3,861 2,932 2,204
Other time deposits .........ccccocvveiiiiereenieees 13,134 11,254 9,171 7,297 6,935
FUNAS DOMrOWEd ......ooeiiiiiieiie e 5,430 5,255 4,867 4,115 4,245
Total interest eXPENSE ........c.eevrveeeimmmemee e 25,582 20,962 17,993 14,513 13,549
Net interest income 26,635 27,870 22,396 17,190 16,863
Provision for loan losses 2,855 1,255 230 1,965 1,350
Net interest income after provision for loan
[OSSES ..t 23,780 26,615 22,166 15,225 15,513
Non-interest income:
Loans held for sale fee income.............cccceeiiieeieiniiiinnen, 3,160 5,046 7,408 10,358 19,866
NSF charges & service fees..... . 1,413 1,244 1,129 1,326 1,283
Other ServiCe Charges..........coovuiiiieeeeneiieeee e 1,417 1,247 1,037 1,115 924
Realized gain on available-for-sale securities................... 105 - - 524 -
Other iNCOMe ......c.coeviiiiiiiiec e 1,105 1,344 1,727 617 463
Total non-interest INCOME ..........ccoovviimieeeieiiieeeeiieeen. 7,200 8,881 11,301 13,940 22,536
Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits ... eeeiiieeeennns 13,570 14,737 15,986 16,670 19,670
Occupancy 3,200 3,059 3,307 3,433 3,137
General & adminiStrative ..............co..e o eeeeeriieeenieeenee 7,447 6,578 6,841 6,467 6,478
Total non-interest expense..... 24,217 24,374 26,134 26,570 29,285
Income before income taxes ... . 6,763 11,122 7,333 2,595 8,764
INCOME taX ProVISION .....ccovviiiiiieiies e e 2,275 4,199 2,764 665 3,130
NEL INCOME ... $ 4,488 $ 6,923 $ 4,569 $ 1,930 $ 5,634
Per Share Data
BasiC €arniNgS .......cccccicuiieiiie e ceeeeeiee e ee e $ 186 $ 293 % 1.95 $ 084 $ 251
Diluted arNINGS ....ccocvvereeeeiieeee e e e e e eiavee e e e eneeee e, 1.84 2.88 1.91 0.82 2.43
DIVIENAS......ceiieieiiiiiee et 0.36 0.30 0.25 0.20 0.15
Book value basic (at end of period) ... 24.34 22.45 19.42 17.78 17.64
Weighted average common shares outstandlng
BASIC .eeiiiiiii ettt 2,410,621 2,365,932 2,348,805 2,302,564 2,244,930
DiIlULE ... e 2,438,203 2,407,802 2,388,531 2,360,061 2,320,840
Dividend payout ratio 19.35% 10.23% 12.82% 23.80 % 5.98
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As of and for the
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Selected Financial Condition Data
(at end of period):

TOtAl SECUNTIES ...eviiiiiiiiei et s e $ 76,871 $ 87,206 $ 99,987 $ 66,350 $ 106,036
Total mortgage loans held for sale ..........ccceeeeeeeiviiiieeeeenne, 10,978 21,805 13,906 44,144 18,297
TOtAl IOANS. ...ciiiiiiiie e 596,646 528,515 503,143 507,170 424,620
Total assets ........ 736,213 692,219 689,589 672,717 627,073
Total deposits ... e 536,370 535,864 529,341 522,646 470,495
FUNAS DOMTOWE ...t 134,942 96,577 104,394 102,469 111,741
Total stockholders’ equity.............. 58,934 53,820 46,255 41,384 40,198
Trust assets under administration ...........cceceeeevvimeecveeeenn. 104,167 104,445 93,988 118,074 90,389
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:
Net interest margin (1) ......ccceeeeeiiieicmem e 3.95% 4.34% 3.50% 2.91% 3.01%
Non-interest income to average assets ....ceccce.veeeeennn. 0.99 1.29 1.63 2.16 3.62
Non-interest expense to average assets. 3.34 3.54 3.77 411 471
Net overhead ratio (2) ......ceeeeeriiiiiiiieeesee e 2.35 2.25 2.14 1.96 1.08
Efficiency ratio (3) .......cccceee... 71.57 66.32 77.56 85.35 74.33
Return on average assets (4) ....cccceveevvvieeeeeivieeeennnnns 0.62 1.00 0.66 0.30 0.91
Return on average equity (5) ....cccooouvemmmmmeeieeeiiieeenn. 7.88 13.81 10.44 4.69 14.85
Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total loans ...........ccccceoeieeeee. 4.22% 1.31% 0.87% 0.86% 0.72%
Allowance for possible loan losses to:
TOtal I0ANS ..ot 151 1.16 133 1.45 1.66
Non-performing loans ................. 35.65 88.16 153.27 168.60 230.79
Net charge-offs to average total loans . 0.06 0.35 0.17 0.36 0.30
Non-performing loans to total assets ........cccceeovevernns 3.42 1.00 0.63 0.65 0.50
Balance Sheet Ratios:
L0ANS t0 dePOSILS ....ocvvivveririiriieiiscemece et 111.24% 98.63% 95.05% 97.04% 90.25%
Average interest-earning assets to average
interest-bearing liabilities ............ccccceveeiiiiieiiiiinen. 117.84 119.12 116.78 114.38 114.61
Capital Ratios:
Total equity to total aSSetS ..........ccveieeeecceriieeeeeeiiiieeenn, 8.01% 71.77% 6.71% 6.15% 6.42%
Total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio.................... 11.53 12.47 12.04 11.15 12.41
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets ratia................... 10.28 11.33 10.25 9.00 10.04
Tier 1 capital to average assets ratio ... .ccoeeeenne 9.86 10.29 8.86 8.45 8.31
Average equity to average assets ratio .......cc...c.cc....... 7.85 7.27 6.31 6.37 6.10
Q) Net interest income, on a full tax-equivaleasis, divided by average interest-earning assets.
(2 Non-interest expense less non-interest incowidet by average total assets.
3) Non-interest expense divided by the sum ofmterest income plus non-interest income.
4) Net income divided by average total assets.
(5) Net income divided by average common equity.
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Item 7: Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following presents management’s discussion andlysis of our financial condition and results of
operations as of the dates and for the periodsateld. You should read this discussion in conjoncwith our
“Selected Consolidated Financial Data,” our comaikd financial statements and the accompanyingsnand the
other financial data contained elsewhere in thi®re

This report contains forward-looking statementsimithe meaning of Section 21E of the Securitieshaxge
Act of 1934, as amended. The Company intends frelard-looking statements to be covered by the safbor
provisions for forward-looking statements contaimedhe Private Securities Litigation Reform Act1d95, and is
including this statement for purposes of those baf&or provisions. Forward-looking statementsicivfare based
on certain assumptions and describe future plarstegies and expectations of the Company, canrgiinde
identified by use of the words "believe," "expectjhtend," "anticipate," "estimate,” "project,” similar
expressions. The Company is unable to predictatiteal results of its future plans or strategieth wiertainty.
Factors which could have a material adverse effadhe operations and future prospects of the Cagnpeclude,
but are not limited to, fluctuations in market satd interest and loan and deposit pricing; a dmtation of general
economic conditions or the demand for housing & @ompany's market areas; a deterioration in tineadd for
mortgage financing; legislative or regulatory chesigadverse developments in the Company's loanvestiment
portfolio; any inability to obtain funding on favalsle terms; the loss of key personnel; significaecteases in
competition; potential unfavorable results of Etipn to which the Company may become a party,thagossible
dilutive effect of potential acquisitions or expams. These risks and uncertainties should beiderexd in
evaluating forward-looking statements and unduameé should not be placed on such statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Please refer to Note 1 of our consolidated findrstEtements where we present a listing and dismuss our
most significant accounting policies. After a mwi of these policies, we determined that accounforgthe
allowance for loan losses is deemed a critical @aeting policy because of the valuation techniqussdy and the
sensitivity of certain financial statement amoutisthe methods, as well as the assumptions andhass,
underlying that policy. Accounting for this criséicarea requires the most subjective and compleégments that
could be subject to revision as new informationdmees available.

As presented in Note 1 and Note 3 to the cons@didinancial statements, the allowance for loarsdss
represents management’s estimate of probable dosdies inherent in the loan portfolio as of théahee sheet
date. This evaluation is inherently subjectivatagquires estimates that are susceptible to fsbgmit revision as
more information becomes available. The adequédhe allowance is analyzed monthly based on iatelwan
reviews and qualitative measurements of our loatf@dm. Management assesses the adequacy oflltheaace
for loan losses based upon a number of factoradig, among others:

» analytical reviews of loan loss experience intiefeship to outstanding loans and commitments;
e problem and non-performing loans and other loaasgnting credit concerns;

» trends in loan growth, portfolio composition andtity;

e appraisals of the value of collateral; and

* management’s judgment with respect to current @enn conditions and their impact on the existingrio
portfolio.

The Bank computes its allowance by assigning siee@serves to impaired loans, plus a general vedeased
on loss factors applied to the rest of the loartfplim. The specific reserve on impaired loangasnputed as the
amount of the loan in excess of the present valtleeoestimated future cash flows discounted atdha’s effective
interest rate, or based on the loan’s observabt&ehaalue or the fair value of the collateraltietloan is collateral
dependent. The general reserve loss factors agendeed based on such items as management's evaloétisk
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in the portfolio, local economic conditions, andstbrical loss experience. The Bank has furtheneef its risk
grading system by developing associated reserterfafor each risk grade.

Overview

The Company had a challenging year in 2007 dubddanterest rate environment and the industry wlieldine
in the real estate market. Interest income fromroercial lending continued to expand primarily doi¢he growth
in our loan portfolio of approximately 12.89%. $tgrowth is a result of the acquisition of UnisoanBorp, Inc.
and its subsidiary, Western National Bank, in Fabyu2007 and internal loan growth from the effoatsd
experience of our lending staff. The prime lendiate remained stable through most of the thirdtguaf 2007.
During the third and fourth quarter of 2007 them@ilending rate dropped a total of 100 basis poifitse drop in
interest rates along with the industry wide declim¢he real estate market has resulted in lowrést income on
loans during the fourth quarter. The decline m tbal estate market along with the growth in oanlportfolio has
resulted in an increase in our provision for loasskes as compared to the prior year. The longeritdgerest rates
have remained stable and have not declined for ofdsie year. This has contributed to a contindedine in the
mortgage origination activity as compared with pyears and declining fee income. During 2007, deposits
have remained virtually unchanged due to the coityeetate environment. As a result, we used nigéésrin our
investment portfolio and sold select securitiegdsist in funding our loan growth. We expect 2@D8e a year of
opportunities for the Company as we look to expand loan and deposit portfolios and increase ourtgage
origination volume.

Net income for 2007 was $4.5 million, a $2.4 millicor 35.17%, decrease from the $6.9 million earined
2006. Diluted earnings per share decreased 36tt1$4.84 for the year ended December 31, 2007 $2r88 in
the previous year. The Company's returns on agesiagets and average stockholders' equity for 2@0& 0.62%
and 7.88%, compared to 1.00% and 13.81%, respgctfee 2006.

Net interest income for 2007 was $26.6 million cangal to $27.9 million earned during 2006. The dase of
$1.2 million, or 4.43%, was primarily the resultaf increase in interest expense of $4.6 millionndu2007. The
increase was due to an increase in average ineeasing liabilities, specifically savings and mgnearket
accounts, due to the acquisition of Unison Bancbrp, and its subsidiary, Western National Bankjrduthe year
and an increase in the overall rate paid on ouosiepdue to the rate environment. The increaseténest expense
was partially offset by an increase in interesbme of $3.4 million due to an increase in the agerbalance of
earning assets, specifically our loans as a reguhe acquisition of Unison Bancorp, Inc. and sdiasy, Western
National Bank, and internal loan growth. The cotreredit environment has made it difficult to aigate the
future of the Company’s interest margin. If intreates remain at the current levels or contirmudecline, the
Company anticipates a negative impact to net istdreome as a result of the repricing of assetk labilities.
The magnitude of this impact will be dependent ugha Federal Reserve’s policy decisions and market
movements. See page 40 for discussion of thedhgfarate increases or decreases on net interesime as of
December 31, 2007.

The provision for loan losses in 2007 was $2.9iamlcompared to $1.2 million in 2006, and $230,002005.
The increase in the provision in 2007 was primaaifyibuted to the decline in the credit qualitytbé real estate
and construction portfolio due to the industry widlecline in the real estate market and partly @uthé internal
growth within the loan portfolio.

Non-interest income decreased 18.93% to $7.2 millin2007 from $8.9 million in 2006. Stable londgerm
interest rates and other demand factors resultedh imdustry-wide decline in the volume of resid@ntortgage
loans originated in 2007 compared to 2006. Thisdreesulted in lower origination fees during 206@rt during
2006 for our Company.

Total assets at December 31, 2007, were $736.Bmilkn increase of $44.0 million, or 6.36%, fro60%.2
million at December 31, 2006. Deposits and stolddrs' equity at December 31, 2007 were $536.4ianiland
$58.9 million, compared with $535.9 million and $%3nillion at December 31, 2006, increases of $30®, or
0.09%, and $5.1 million, or 9.50%, respectively.
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Loans at December 31, 2007 totaled $596.6 millam,increase of $68.1 million, or 12.89%, compared t
December 31, 2006. The loan to deposit ratio atebder 31, 2007 was 111.24% compared to 98.63% at
December 31, 2006. The increase in the loan tosiepatio was due to loan growth which, on a retabasis,
outpaced deposit growth. Our funding philosophyléans not held for sale has been to primarilyease deposits
from retail and commercial deposit sources andregadly use other borrowing sources as necessdfiyntb loans
within the limits of the Bank's capital base.

For the five years ended December 31, 2007, ouageeyear-end ratio of non-performing loans toltlotans
was 1.60%. As of December 31, 2007, our ratio ari-performing loans to total loans was 4.22%, whis
above our historical averages primarily due todheline in the real estate market and its impacbwunreal estate
and construction loan portfolio. Our non-performiegedit relationships are regularly reviewed andsely
monitored. Our philosophy has been to value nafepming loans at their estimated collectible vaked to
aggressively manage these situations. As of Deeerdb, 2007, our ratio of allowance for loan losteson-
performing loans was 35.65%, compared to 88.16%eaember 31, 2006. The Bank continues to aggrysiv
manage defaults in the loan portfolio. Managematénds to continue to vigorously pursue collectmhall
charged-off loans.

Net Interest Income

A primary component of our net income is our négriest income. Net interest income is determingdhk
spread between the fully tax equivalent (FTE) ygelk earn on our interest-earning assets and thg nae pay on
our interest-bearing liabilities, as well as thiatige amounts of such assets and liabilities. REEinterest margin
is determined by dividing FTE net interest incomeadverage interest-earning assets. The followiisgudsion
should be read along with analysis of the “AverBgéances, Yields and Rates” table on the next page.

Years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006E net interest income for 2007 decreased to $2@l®n from
$27.9 million in 2006, a $1.2 million, or 4.45% cdease.

FTE interest income for 2007 was $52.2 million,imcrease of $3.4 million, or 6.92%, from $48.8 oifl in
2006, primarily as a result of an increase in thimhces on average earning assets. The yield enagss earning
assets increased 14 basis points to 7.75% in 266ipared to 7.61% in 2006. Average interest earasgpts
increased $32.0 million, or 4.99%, during 2007.eDRa the increase in earning asset volume, loamdst and fee
income increased to $47.2 million in 2007 from $A4sillion in 2006, a $2.7 million, or 5.97%, ince=a Interest
income on investment securities increased $420,0000.36%, in 2007 compared to the prior year wukigher
yields earned on the securities. Interest incoareesl on Federal Funds Sold increased $301,000%68% in
2007 compared to the prior year due primarily hler balances on those earning assets.

Interest expense for 2007 was $25.6 million, u$4illion, or 22.04%, from $21.0 million in 2006The
increase resulted from increases in the balanad®wagrall rate paid on our average interest-bediaijities. The
rate paid on our total average interest bearirgliiees increased to 4.47% in 2007 compared t®%8n 2006, an
increase of 58 basis points. This increase rabfiitan increases in rates paid on interest-beat@mand accounts,
money market deposits, time deposits, short- ang-term debt. Total average interest bearinglltads increased
$33.0 million, or 6.13%, during 2007 primarily dteincreases in money market deposits, time depasitl long-
term borrowings.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 208BE net interest income for 2006 increased to $&7IBon from
$22.4 million in 2005, a $5.5 million, or 24.33%ciease.

FTE interest income for 2006 was $48.8 million,ilmerease of $8.4 million, or 20.84%, from $40.4lioil in
2005, primarily as a result of an increase in tieddyon average earning assets. The yield on geezarning assets
increased 130 basis points to 7.61% in 2006 condpar®.31% in 2005. Average interest earning assereased
$1.3 million, or 0.20%, during 2006. Due to thergmse in the yield and in earning asset voluna Interest and
fee income increased to $44.5 million in 2006 fr§B8v.5 million in 2005, a $7.0 million, or 18.79%crease.
Interest income on investment securities incredse#il.7 million, or 72.61%, in 2006 compared to gnr year
due to higher average balances of investment sesuaind higher yields on those securities. lstareome earned
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on Federal Funds Sold decreased $324,000, or 55.872006 compared to the prior year due primatdlyjower
levels of those earning assets.

Interest expense for 2006 was $21.0 million, upD3$8illion, or 16.50%, from $18.0 million in 2005The
increase resulted from an increase in the ovea#dl paid on our average interest-bearing liakslitierhe rate paid
on our total average interest bearing liabilitiesreased to 3.89% in 2006 compared to 3.28% in ,28@%ncrease
of 61 basis points. This increase resulted froongases in rates paid on savings deposits, moneyetrdeposits,
time deposits, and short- and long-term debt. [Tatarage interest bearing liabilities decreased $8illion, or
1.77%, during 2006 primarily due to decreases imeyomarket deposits that exceeded the increaséisne
deposits.

Average Balance SheetsThe following table sets forth for the periodsdaas of the dates indicated,
information regarding our average balances of assad liabilities as well as the dollar amountsndérest income
from interest-earning assets and interest expemssterest-bearing liabilities and the resultanéseor costs. Ratio,
yield and rate information are based on averagdy deilances where available; otherwise, averagethhpn
balances have been used. Nonaccrual loans arel@ttlin the calculation of average balances forddan the
periods indicated.

AVERAGE BALANCES, YIELDS AND RATES

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(In thousands)

Assets
Federal funds sold and other short term investsnent$ 10,902 $ 557 511% $ 5100% 256 5.01% 16,076 $ 580 3.61%
Investment securities — taxable ....... . 90,246 4,452 4.93 93,043 4,013 4.31 71,695 2,256 3.15
Investment securities — non-taxable.(1)... 312 21 6.66 565 40 7.03 1,317 92 6.95
Mortgage loans held for sale.................c.... 9,589 609 6.35 18,067 1,145 6.34 35,232 1,903 5.40
Loans, net of unearned discount and fees (2)... 563,224 46,585 8.27 525,471 43,392 8.26 516,642 35,589 6.89

Total earning assets 674,273 52,224 7.75 642,246 48,846 7.61 640,962 40,420 6.31
Cash and due from banks — non-interest bearing..... 17,728~ T 18545 22,733
Allowance for possible loan losses . (6,962) (6,556) (7,067)
Premises and equipment, net...... 19,072 18,300 19,304
Other assets 20,895 16,444 18,119

Total assets $ 725,006 $ 688,979 $ 694,051
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits-interest bearing:
Interest-bearing demand accounts............oooeeee.vvvnnr. 30,719 $ 656 2.14% $  24979% 97 0.3%6 25104 $ 94 0.38 %
Savings and money market deposits .. 163,099 6,362 3.90 147,403 4,356 2.95 178,947 3,861 2.16
TiMe AEPOSILS «.vvevovvereeveeeereereren 269,673 13,134 4.87 262,199 11,254 4.29 238,051 9,171 3.85

Total interest-bearing deposits ... ) 463,491 20,152 4.35 434,581 15,707 3.61 442,102 13,126 2.97
ShOrt-term DOMTOWINGS .......cvveveeese s mmmeessereenesinenes 33,610 1,319 3.93 32,047 1,365 4.26 24,511 557 2.27
Long-term debt 75,087 4,111 5.48 72,530 3,890 5.36 82,243 4,310 5.24

Total interest-bearing liabilities . ) 572,188 25,582 4.47 539,158 20,962 3.89 548,856 17,993 3.28
Non-interest bearing deposits ...............ceeeemmeeereeeeen. 91,151 93,916 93,447
Other liabilities 4,745 5,770 7,982
StoCKhOIdErs’ €QUILY .......evveeriieeeiiiie e e 56,922 50,135 43,766

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 725,006 $ 688,979 $ 694,051
FTE net ?nterest income/spread ............................... T $ 26,642 328% $ 27,884 3.72%  $ 22,427 3.03 %
FTE netinterest margin.........cccccoccvveiiiivecmiiie e — 3.95% = T 434% — T 350%

(1) Presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis assumitax rate of 34%. For the three years ended DeeeBi, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
the tax equivalency adjustment amounted to $7 $08,000, and $31,000, respectively.

(2) Includes average balances and income from loam®oaccrual status
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Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income Duehanges in Interest Rates and Volum&hke following table
presents the dollar amount of changes in interesime and interest expense for major componentsterfest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitigsdidtinguishes between the increase or decredstedeo changes
in balances and changes in interest rates. Fadn eategory of interest-earning assets and intdregsting
liabilities, information is provided on changegiatitable to:

» changes in rate, reflecting changes in rate migdtigby the prior period volume; and

» changes in volume, reflecting changes in volumetipligd by the current period rate.
CHANGES IN INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE VOLUME AND R ATE
VARIANCES

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands)

2007 Compared to 2006 2006 Compared to 2005
Change Change Change Change
Due to Due to Total Due to Due to Total
Rate Volume Change Rate Volume Change

Federal funds sold $ 5 $ 296 $ 301 $ 226 % (550) $ (324)
Investment securities —

taxable 577 (138) 439 836 921 1,757
Investment securities — non-

taxable (1) 2) 17) (29) 1 (53) (52)
Mortgage loans held for sale 2 (538) (536) 330 (1,088) (758)
Loans, net of unearned

discount 70 3,123 3,193 7,074 729 7,803

Total interest income 652 2,726 3,378 8,467 (41) 8,426

Interest-bearing demand

accounts 436 123 559 4 1) 3
Savings and money market

deposits 1,394 612 2,006 1,427 (932) 495
Time deposits 1,516 364 1,880 1,047 1,036 2,083
Short-term borrowings (107) 61 (46) 487 321 808
Long-term debt 81 140 221 101 (521) (420)

Total interest expense 3,320 1,300 4,620 3,066 (97) 2,969

Net interest income $ (2,668) $ 1,426 $ (1,242) $ 5401 $ 56 $ 5,457

(1) Presented on a fully tax-equivalent basis agsyia tax rate of 34%.

Provision for Loan Losses

We make provisions for loan losses in amounts mamagt deems necessary to maintain the allowance for
loan losses at an appropriate level. During ther yded December 31, 2007, we provided $2.9 mifiaw loan
losses, as compared to $1.2 million for the yededrDecember 31, 2006, an increase of $1.6 milbori,27.49%.
During 2007, our provision for loan losses increbdee to the decline in the credit quality of tlealrestate and
construction portfolio due to the industry wide lilge in the real estate market and the internalmjnowithin the
loan portfolio. If the recent trend is prolonge®idosses continue to increase, it could resutigher loan losses in
the future. Total impaired loans increased 136.89%24.4 million at December 31, 2007, with atedereserve of
$2.7 million, from $10.3 million at December 31,08) with a related reserve of $719,000. Net chafte
decreased to $339,000 in 2007 from $1.9 millioA0A6.

During 2006, our provision for loan losses increbdae to an increase in net charge-offs back toablevels
compared with historical averages and to a lesgenesome growth in the loan portfolio. During thear ended
December 31, 2006, we provided $1.2 million fornodasses, as compared to $230,000 for the yeardende
December 31, 2005, an increase of $1.0 millioml4%.65%.
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The allowance for loan losses as a percentageaotlwas 1.51% at December 31, 2007, compared 64liri
2006 and 1.33% in 2005. The increase in this p¢age from December 31, 2006 was primarily dudnéodecline
in the credit quality of the real estate and cartdion portfolio due to the industry wide declimethe real estate
market and the internal growth within the loan fodid.

Overall, we increased the total balance of thewalice for loan losses in 2007 based upon an aratfsi
several factors, including an analysis of impaiaahs, the general reserve factor analysis reféoréa ourCritical
Accounting Policieschanges in the loan mix, and charge offs thatiwed during the year. The allowance for loan
losses represents our best estimate of probabdedahat have been incurred as of the respectiamdsa sheet
dates.

Non-interest Income
The following table describes the items of our muerest income for the periods indicated:

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Loans held for sale fee income.............cceeeeevennn. $ 3,160 $ 5,046 $ 7,408
NSF charges and service fees .........cccccevvvevecnnnns 1,418 1,244 1,129
Other service charges........cccceeeeeeiiiiieiiiinieaaeeenn, 1,412 1,247 1,037
Realized gains on available-for-sale securities,.ne 105 - -
Other iNCOME .......ueiiiiiiiiiiieiieeee e 1,105 1,344 1,727

Total non-interest iNnCOMe...........c..cceeeunee.e. $ 7,200 $ 8,881 $ 11,301

Non-interest income decreased to $7.2 million, &93%, during 2007, from $8.9 million during 200&his
decrease is attributable to a decrease in loamdsfbekale fee income of $1.9 million. We expeceth a decline in
our loans held for sale fee income resulting fromtealine in residential mortgage origination voluchee to the
industry wide decline in the real estate markete Volume of closed residential mortgages fell8%8 million in
2007 from $336.3 million and $675.6 million in 2086d 2005, respectively. Sustainability of theelenf our loans
held for sale fee income is primarily dependentrugee economy and interest rate environment, andnskarily
dependent on our ability to develop new products @ternative delivery channels. NSF charges andice fees
increased by $174,000, or 13.99%, from 2006 to 200fis increase is primarily attributed to an gwse in the
number of transactional accounts. The fees asbes®e collected on these accounts are based acugtemer’s
activity. Other service charge income, which idgs trust services income, investment brokerageniec
merchant bankcard processing and debit card progeseome, increased by $165,000, or 13.23%, f2Q@6 to
2007. This increase is partly attributed to incageeerated from signature based debit card transacissociated
with our new performance checking product and pattie to the increased activity within our investinerokerage
department. In 2007, we realized $105,000 of agiggon the sale of available-for-sale securitd& sold some of
the bonds in our available-for-sale investmentfptia to provide additional funding for our loanayrth. Future
growth of other non-interest income categoriesdpeathdent upon new product development, and gromvitur
customer base.

Non-interest income decreased to $8.9 million, bA2%, during 2006, from $11.3 million during 200%his
decrease is attributable to a decrease in loansfbiekale fee income of $2.4 million. We expecieth a decline in
our loans held for sale fee income due to a dedfimesidential mortgage origination and refinagciasulting from
a stable interest rate environment. The volumeladed residential mortgages fell to $336.3 millinor2006 from
$675.6 million and $883.4 million in 2005 and 20@dspectively. Sustainability of the level of doans held for
sale fee income is primarily dependent upon ther@st rate environment, and secondarily dependentp ability
to develop new products and alternative delivergnctels. Other income decreased $383,000, or 22.18%
primarily to gains on the sale of our old Olath@kiag facility realized during 2005.
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Non-interest Expense
The following table describes the items of our muerest expense for the periods indicated.
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Salaries and employee benefits............... $ 13,570 $ 14,737 $ 15,986
OCCUPANCY ettt 3,200 3,059 3,307
General and administrative....................... 7,447 6,578 6,841
Total non-interest expenses............. $ 24,217 $ 24,374 $ 26,134

Non-interest expense decreased 0.64% to $24.2omitdluring 2007, compared to $24.4 million in théopr
year primarily due to a decrease in salaries anpl@me benefits. Our salaries and employee besnefipense
decreased 7.92% to $13.6 million in 2007 from $X4illion in 2006, mainly due to a decline in compation costs
in our mortgage division. During 2007 we contindedestructure and reduce our mortgage divisiaffing due to
the decline in mortgage origination volume and tiezline in the real estate market. We had 214tifule
employees at December 31, 2007 compared to 224rhdl employees at December 31, 2006. Occupanugreses
increased $141,000, or 4.61%, due to increasededgpion and maintenance expenses primarily reladethe
addition of our Lenexa banking center in 2007 aesult of the acquisition of Unison Bancorp, Inadaits
subsidiary, Western National Bank. General andiaditnative expenses increased $869,000, or 13.2t#barily
due to consulting services related to the mortgagerations restructuring, as well as expensesecklad the
purchase of Unison Bancorp, Inc. and its subsiday marketing efforts focused on our new locatihenexa.

Non-interest expense decreased 6.73% to $24.4omitluring 2006, compared to $26.1 million in théopr
year primarily due to a decrease in salaries anpl@me benefits. Our salaries and employee besnefipense
decreased 7.81% to $14.7 million in 2006 from $¥6illion in 2005, mainly due to a decline in compation costs
in our mortgage division. We had 224 full-time dayges at December 31, 2006 compared to 265 atrikre31,
2005. The decrease in full-time equivalent empdsyes mainly due to the reduction in force in ouwrigage
operations due to a decline in mortgage volume.cuPpancy expenses decreased $248,000, or 7.50%todue
decreased depreciation and maintenance expenseserdb and administrative expenses decreased {EH3H0
3.85%, primarily due to decreased advertising egpemelated to mortgage lead generation activities.

Income Taxes

Our income tax expense during 2007 was $2.3 mijlleempared to $4.2 million during 200#nd $2.8 million
during 2005. The decrease in 2007 reflects ouetagarnings for the current fisgaar. Our consolidated effective
income tax rates of 34%, 38% and 38% for the tlyeses ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 200%atdsgly,
varies from the statutory rate principally duetie effects of state income taxes..

Financial Condition

Lending Activities.Our loan portfolio is a key source of income, amte our inception, has been a principal
component of our revenue growth. Our loan porfokflects an emphasis on commercial and commereil
estate, construction, lease financing, residemsial estate, consumer and home equity lending. ewWpghasize
commercial lending to professionals, businesses thett owners. Commercial loans and loans secimgd
commercial real estate accounted for 48.57%, 44.888045.12% of our total loans at December 31, 20006
and 2005, respectively.

Loans were $596.6 million at December 31, 2007 imamease of $68.1 million, or 12.89%, compared to
December 31, 2006. Loans were $528.5 million atdb@ber 31, 2006, an increase of $25.4 million, .6A%o,
compared to December 31, 2005. The loan to depgitincreased to 111.24%, compared to 98.63Rteaember
31, 2006, and 95.05% at December 31, 2005.
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We experienced increases in most loan categorigagd@007. The growth in these categories is primar
result of the purchase of Unison Bancorp, Inc. imdubsidiary, Western National Bank, coupled wta efforts
and experience of our lending staff. The Compangets consumer lending lines of business in antaff broadly
diversify our risk across multiple lines of busisesThe following table sets forth the compositmhour loan
portfolio by loan type as of the dates indicatede Bmounts in the following table are shown nedistounts and

other deductions.

As of December 31

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(In thousands)
Commercial............... $ 139,120 23.32% $ 110,849 2097 % $ 112,452 22.35% $ 117,604 23.19% $ 109,818 25.86 %
Commercial real estate 150,655 25.25 126,952 24.02 114,562 22.77 126,205 24.88 87,438 20.59
Construction............... 188,229 31.55 171,709 32.49 139,662 27.76 130,631 25.76 123,445 29.08
Lease financing.......... 19,724 3.30 18,512 3.50 18,238 3.62 21,203 4.18 22,175 5.22
Residential real estate 37,511 6.29 34,988 6.63 39,371 7.83 30,886 6.09 27,017 6.37
Consumet.................. 22,934 3.84 33,097 6.26 45,221 8.99 48,950 9.65 29,701 6.99
Home equity............... 38,473 6.45 32,408 6.13 33,637 6.68 31,691 6.25 25,026 5.89
Total loans and
1ease ......cvvvviin.. 596,646 100.00 % 528,515 100.00% 503,143 100.00% 507,170 100.00% 424,620 100.00 %
Less allowance for loe
l0SSE...ooiiiinn __ 898z ____6,10¢ ___6,70¢ __7.33¢ ___ 7,081
Loans receivable, r.... $ 587,664 $  522,40¢ $ 496,43¢ $ 499,83 $ 417,56¢

Collateral and Concentration. Management monitors concentrations of loans taviddals or businesses
involved in a single industry over 5% of total IsanAt December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, subsligraié of our
loans were collateralized with real estate, inventaccounts receivable and/or other assets or geseanteed by
the Small Business Administration. Loans to indials and businesses in the construction industeyetd $188.2
million, or 31.55%, of total loans, as of DecemB&r 2007. The Bank does not have any other coraterts of
loans to individuals or businesses involved inrggl& industry exceeding 5% of total loans. The IBahending
limit under federal law to any one borrower was $18illion at December 31, 2007. The Bank’s latge@sgle
borrower, net of participations, at December 31)728ad outstanding loans of $12.8 million.

The following table presents the aggregate matsritif loans in each major category of our loanfpliotas of
December 31, 2007, excluding the allowance for laad valuation losses. Additionally, the tableserds the
dollar amount of all loans due more than one yétar ®ecember 31, 2007 which have predeterminestést rates
(fixed) or adjustable interest rates (variable)ctual maturities may differ from the contractualtordies shown
below as a result of renewals and prepaymentseatirtiing of loan sales.

MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITIES OF LOANS TO
CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

As of December 312007

More than One Yeal

Less than One to Over five
one yea five years years Total Fixed Variable
(In thousands)
Commercial........cccceeeeeieeeiieeennnnnn. $ 67,820 $ 65,651 $ 5649 $ 139,120 $ 22,594 $ 48,706
Commercial Real Estate............... 23,105 115,670 11,880 150,655 70,291 57,259
CoNnStruction.........cceeveeeeeeeeeeeneennn. 148,502 35,869 3,858 188,229 20,815 18,912

Non-performing Assets

Non-performing assets consist primarily of loanstmhue 90 days or more, nonaccrual loans and fsedlreal
estate. The following table sets forth our non-perming assets as of the dates indicated:
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NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

As of December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(mousands)

Commercial and all other loans:

Past due 90 days or more..............commmeeerneee. - 680 $ 802 $ 781 $ 2,008 $ 118

[N\ (o] g = (ot ot (U - | 60 381 769 543 318
Commercial real estate loans:

Past due 90 days Or Mmore .............comeeeeeeesns - 4,951 598 - -

NONACCIUAL.......coiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 512 - - 158 -
Construction loans:

Past due 90 days or more..............commmmmeveeeea... 10,699 - 585 - -

NONACCIUAL.......ceiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 10,115 136 452 - 487
Lease financing:

Past due 90 days Or Mmore .............comeeeeeeenns 11 186 5 1 -

N [0] g F=Teod (U F=1 HR T 1,084 - 119 80 249
Residential real estate loans:

Past due 90 days or more 1,194 - - 153 336

NONACCIUAL.......ceiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 189 410 1,016 1,315 437
Consumer loans:

Past due 90 days Or more ..............oummmmeveveersns 13 13 49 17 42

NONACCIUAL.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e - 47 - - -
Home equity loans:

Past due 90 days Or MOre .............comeeeeeeesns 637 - - - -

\[0] g F=Teod (U= R - - - 75 1,068
Debt securities and other assets (excluding otradr r
estate owned and other repossessed assets):

Past due 90 days or more.......... - - - - -

Nonaccrual.........coccoeeiviiieeiiicenaes - - - - -

Total non-performing loans 25,194 6,926 4,374 4,350 3,055
Foreclosed assets held for sale .........cccoeevueeennnnne. 2,523 717 711 2,645 416
Total non-performing assets ............. $27717 $ 7643 $ 508 $ 6995 $ 3,471

Total non-performing loans to total loans 4.22% 1.31% 0.87% 0.86% 0.72%
Total non-performing loans to total assets............ 3.42 1.00 0.63 0.65 0.49
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans.. 35.65 88.16 153.27 168.60 230.79
Non-performing assets to loans and foreclosed ass

held fOr Sale ......uvvviiiiiiiiii e e 4.63 1.44 1.01 1.37 0.82

Non-performing assets Non-performing assets increased to $27.7 miladrDecember 31, 2007 from $7.6
million at December 31, 2006. The increase is du¢hé addition of $20.8 million non-performing l@am the
construction portfolio. Eight borrowing relatiorgh make up approximately 89% of the $20.8 millitor, which
management is aggressively pursuing collectione ifbrease in non-performing assets in the consruportfolio
is a result of the industry wide decline in thel esstate market. If this trend continues, it coddult in an increase
in non-performing assets and foreclosed assetsfhietdle.

Impaired Loans. A loan is considered impaired when it is probablat tve will not receive all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loanisTircludes loans that are delinquent 90 days aemmonaccrual
loans, and certain other loans identified by mansege. Accrual of interest is discontinued, ancetliest accrued
and unpaid is removed, at the time the loans atmqient 90 days or when management believes thiat f
collection of principal and interest under the ové loan contract is unlikely to occur. Interéstrecognized for
nonaccrual loans only upon receipt, and only ateprincipal amounts are current according to tiéens of the
contract.

Impaired loans totaled $24.4 million at Decembey 2107, $10.3 million at December 31, 2006, and.$11
million at December 31, 2005, with related allowesmdor loan losses of $2.7 million, $719,000, atd23$nillion,
respectively.
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Total interest income of $1.3 million, $728,000 k2,000 was recognized on average impaired loans
$17.3 million, $12.1 million and $10.4 million f&007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Included in thtal is cash
basis interest income of $49,000, $53,000 and $D5;:8cognized on nonaccrual impaired loans durb@jr22006
and 2005, respectively.

Allowance For Loan LossesThe allowance for loan losses is increased by pions charged to expense and
reduced by loans charged off, net of recoveriefie adequacy of the allowance is analyzed monthsedban
internal loan reviews and quality measurements wf loan portfolio. The Bank computes its allowarizme
assigning specific reserves to impaired loans, toath applies general reserves, based on loss $adtrthe
remainder of the loan portfolio. The loss factars determined based on such items as managemeaitigtion of
risk in the portfolio, local and national econorninditions, and historical loss experience. Speaifowances are
accrued on specific loans evaluated for impairnfentwhich the basis of each loan, including accrirgdrest,
exceeds the discounted amount of expected futdlections of interest and principal or, alternatjyehe fair value
of the loan collateral.

The following table sets forth information regamglichanges in our allowance for loan and valuatimsés for
the periods indicated.
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SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE
AND RELATED INFORMATION

As of and for the

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of period............. $ 6,106 $ 6,704 % 7333 $ 7051 $ 6914
Loans charged-off:
Commercial loans........ccocceveeeevnnnnee. 215 1,417 949 1,665 802
Commercial real estate loans........... - - - - 395
Construction loans .............ccvveeeeenn. 244 100 - - -
Lease financing.........cccccvvveeeeeiiinns 139 134 86 220 279
Residential real estate loans............ 49 318 - 18 -
Consumer loans...........ccccevvvvvvveennns 16 83 77 80 68
Home equity loans ..........ccccceeeeenn. - 8 16 - 10
Total loans charged-off............... 663 2,060 1,128 1,983 1,554
Recoveries:
Commercial loans........cccccooevvveennn. 294 117 154 41 77
Commercial real estate loans........... 1 - 3 7 10
Construction loans ...........cccceeveveees - - - - -
Lease financing.........cccccvvvveeeeiiinns 9 32 76 166 219
Residential real estate loans............ 6 47 1 48 -
Consumer loans...........ccccevvvvvvvevnnns 14 11 35 38 35
Home equity loans............cccccceeeeen. - - - - -
Total rECOVENES......oeeeeveevieeeeeeeviiieenns 324 207 269 300 341
Net loans charged-off...........ccccccoeiiis 339 1,853 859 1,683 1,213
Allowance of acquired company.......... 360 - - - -
Provision for loan losses ............ccccc...... 2,855 1,255 230 1,965 1,350
Balance at end of period....................... $ 8982 $ 6,106 $ 6,704 $ 7333 $ 7,051
Loans outstanding: .........ccccceeeevevvvvnenn.
AVErage.....cvvviieeieeeieiciiieieeae e $ 563,224 $ 525471 $ 516,643 $ 463,833 $ 410,593
End of period .........ccccvvvveneeennnn. 596,646 528,515 503,143 507,170 424,620
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to
loans outstanding: ........ccccceeeeiviinnns
AVEIagEe.....coveiieieeeeiiiiee e 1.59% 1.16% 1.30 % 1.58 % 1.72 %
End of period ........ccccceeviiveennnneen. 1.51 1.16 1.33 1.45 1.66
Ratio of net charge-offs to:..................
Average 10ans .......ccccccoeviiiiinenn. 0.06 0.35 0.17 0.36 0.30
End of period loans..................... 0.06 0.35 0.17 0.33 0.29

The following table shows our allocation of theoalnce for loan losses by specific category atetiokof each
of the periods shown. Management attempts to aospecific portions of the allowance for loarsks based on
specifically identifiable problem loans. Howevtre allocation of the allowance to each categonoisnecessarily
indicative of future losses and does not resthietuse of the allowance to absorb losses in argoaf.
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Commercial

Commercial real estate

Construction
Lease financ

Residential real estate

Consumer
Home equity
Total

ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

As of December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
% of Total % of Total % of Total % of Total Amount % of Total
Amount  Allowance Amount Allowance Amount Allowance Amount Allowance Allowance
$ 1,790 1993 % 1,386 2270 %$ 1,863 2779 %$ 3,016 41.13 %$ 2,899 41.12 Y
1,597 17.78 1,674 27.42 1,441 21.49 1,432 19.53 1,161 16.47
4,188 46.63 1,920 31.44 1,776  5P6. 1,475 20.11 1,581 22.42
ing 664 7.39 355 5.81 582 8.68 835 7.95 690 9.78
377 4.20 402 6.58 536 7.99 209 2.85 273 3.87
119 1.32 172 2.82 294 4.38 404 5.51 288 4.09
247 2.75 197 3.23 212 3.16 214 922 159 2.25
$ 8,982 100.00 %$ 6,106 100.00 %$ 6,704 100.00 %$ 7,333 100.00 %$ 7,051 100.00 9%

Investment securitiesThe primary objectives of our investment portfadie to secure the safety of principal,
to provide adequate liquidity and to provide se@sifor use in pledging for public funds or reghase agreements.
Income is a secondary consideration. As a resdtgenerally do not invest in mortgage-backed seesirand

other higher yielding investments.

Total investment securities decreased by $10.3iamjllor 11.85%, during 2007, as we utilized matgrin

investment securities and sold approximately $@lflomto assist in funding our loan growth.

As of December 31, 2007, all of the securitiesuniavestment portfolio were classified as avadafdr-sale in

order to provide us with an additional source qéiidity when necessary and as pledging requirenpartsitted.

The following table presents the composition of awailable-for-sale investment portfolio by majategory at

the dates indicated.
INVESTMENT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

At December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
U.S. government sponsored agency securities.... $ 75,953 % 86,165 $ 98,667
State and municipal obligations.............ccccceee....c.. 210 360 674
Equity and other ............c.ooooiiiteee e, 708 681 646
TOtAleeeeiiee e $ 76,871% 87,206 $ 99,987

The following table sets forth the maturities, garg value, and average yields for securities iniouestment
portfolio at December 31, 2007. Yields are presgmn a tax equivalent basis. Expected matusitidsliffer from

contractual maturities due to unscheduled repaysnent
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MATURITY OF INVESTMENTS IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECUR ITIES

One Year or Less One to Five Years Five to Ten Years More Than Ten Total Investment
Years Securities
Carrying  Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average
Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield

(In thousands)

Available-For-Sale
U.S. government

sponsored agency ...... 3$ 7,527 481% $ 49,714 511% $ 18,712 5.62% $ - -% $ 75,953 5.18%
State and municipal
Obligations ................... 210 6.44 - - - - - - 210 6.44

Equity and other securities
with no defined maturity . - - - - - - - - 708 2.96
Total available-for-sale $ 7,737  4.85% $ 49,714 511% $ 18,712 562% $ - -% $ 76,871 5.16 %

Deposits. Deposits grew by $506,000, or 0.09%, for the yesadted December 31, 2007, compared to 2006
year-end. The primary source of deposit growth in 2007 wambney market balances, which increased by $32.9
million, and in interest-bearing demand balancelsickv increased $9.6 million. The increase in monmyrket
balances was primarily due to the deposits acquinetthe purchase of Unison Bancorp, Inc. and itssiliary,
Western National Bank and the addition of a new eyomarket product in 2007 offering attractive ietgrrates.
The increase in interest-bearing demand balanceagd2007 was a result of our new performance cingck
product. This checking account has been attrastiveir market as it pays a higher rate of inteteshe customer
on balances up to $25,000 as long as the custoazelh signature based debit card transactions taledst one
ACH or direct deposit each statement cycle. ThekBaalizes non-interest income from the signabhased debit
card transactions, when netted against the high paid to the customer, results in a very attractow cost of
funds for the Bank. The growth in these accoustsffset by the decrease in our time deposit adsouihe
decrease in our time deposits was attributabledaompetitive nature of our market. We have tiaaklly offered
market-competitive rates on our deposit productklzglieve they provide us with a more attractiverse of funds
than other alternatives such as Federal Home Laark Bborrowings, due to our ability to cross-selti@idnal
services to these account holders. However, wéireento analyze alternative strategies to grow adeposits
including opening additional banking centers in ke#s management considers underserved, offeringoneducts,
and obtaining brokered deposits as allowed by oundE Management policy and as deemed prudent by
management and our board of directors.

The following table sets forth the balances forheamjor category of our deposit accounts and thighted-
average interest rates paid for interest-bearipgsies for the periods indicated:

DEPOSITS

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Percent Weighted Percent Weighted Percent  Weighted

of Average of Average Of Average
Balance Deposits Rate Balance  Deposits Rate Balance Deposits Rate

Demand.........cccceevvveennns $ 87,927 16.39% —% $ 94,823 17.69% —% $ 94,452 17.85% —%
SaviNgS....coeeviveeeeaiiieeenns 8,384 1.57 0.49 8,874 1.66 0.49 9,669 1.82 0.49
Interest-bearing demand. 35,983 6.71 2.14 26,427 4.93 0.39 26,560 5.01 0.38
Money Market................ 153,619 28.64 4.09 23,071 4.31 1.13 27,583 5.21 0.57
Money Management....... — — — 97,697 18.23 3.61 121,422 22.94 2.60
Time Deposits................ 250,457 46.69 4.87 284,972 53.18 3.97 249,655 47.17 3.85

Total deposits........ $ 536,370 100.00% $ 535,864 100.00% $ 529,341 100.00%
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The following table sets forth the amount of oundideposits that are greater than $100,000 byrémaining
until maturity as of December 31, 2007:

AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES OF
TIME DEPOSITS OF $100,000 OR MORE

As of December 31, 2007
Weighted Average

Amount Rate Paid
(In thousands)
Three MOoNthS OF I€SS.....oii e $ 36,306 5.08%
Over three months through siXx Months........ccccceeiiiiiiiceiiiiee, 19,091 5.30
Over six months through twelve months .......coeeeevvvviiiiieeeee, 46,733 5.23
Over tWelve MONTNS.........uuiiiiiiiiiic e 36,922 5.02
TOtAl . ceeiiieeee e ———————————————————— $ 139,052 5.14%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity. Liquidity is measured by a financial institutisrability to raise funds through deposits, borrdwe
funds, capital, or the sale of marketable assat$) as residential mortgage loans or a portfoli8BA loans. Other
sources of liquidity, including cash flow from thepayment of loans, are also considered in detémmiwhether
liquidity is satisfactory. Liquidity is also achied through growth of core deposits and liquid &ssand
accessibility to the money and capital marketse Tunds are used to meet deposit withdrawals, eiaimeserve
requirements, fund loans and operate the orgaaizatCore deposits, defined as demand deposiesesitbearing
transaction accounts, savings deposits and timesitspless than $100,000 (excluding brokered dégosiere
72.36% of our total deposits at December 31, 266d,73.40% and 74.26% of total deposits at DeceBibe?006
and 2005, respectively. Generally, the Companyislihg strategy is to fund loan growth with corgal&ts and
utilize alternative sources of funds such as adesfhborrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank opéka
(“FHLBank”), as well as the brokered CD market toyde for additional liquidity needs and take acheme of
opportunities for lower costs. FHLB borrowings atso used to fund originations of mortgage loaglsl lfor sale.
Advance availability with the FHLBank is determineaily with regards to mortgage loans held for safe
quarterly with regards to overall availability aatiDecember 31, 2007, approximately $40.2 milliaswavailable.
The Company’s FHLBank advance availability flucesatiepending on levels of available collateral cihincludes
mortgage loans held for sale. In addition, the @any uses other forms of short-term borrowings dash
management and liquidity management purposes amited basis. These forms of borrowings includeefad
funds purchased and revolving lines of credit (Skete 9 of the Financial Statements). The CompaAgset-
Liability Management Committee utilizes a variety liguidity monitoring tools, including an assedfiility
modeling software, to analyze and manage the Coygphquidity.

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan ERydtem, which consists of 12 regional Federal Home

Loan Banks governed and regulated by the FederasiHg Finance Board. The Federal Home Loan Barkdqe

a central credit facility for member institution3he Bank, as a member of the FHLBank of Topekegdgiired to
acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the Btk of Topeka in an amount of 0.2% of our totaless as of
December 31 of the preceding calendar year to iteetsset based stock requirement and 5.00% ofotair
outstanding FHLBank advances to meet the activityell stock requirement. The Bank is currentlyoimgliance
with this requirement, with a $5.4 million investmién stock of the FHLBank of Topeka as of Decentier2007.
The Bank had $52.5 million and $37.5 million in stahding long-term advances from the FHLBank of &kagpat
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Management has established internal guidelinesiaatytical tools to measure liquid assets, altéraagources

of liquidity, as well as relevant ratios concernamset levels and purchased funds. These indécaterreported to
the board of directors monthly.
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The following table sets forth a summary of ourrstterm borrowings during and as of the end of eaetiod
indicated.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Average Weighted Weighted
Amount amount Maximum average Average
outstanding outstanding Outstanding interest rate interest rate
at during the At any during the at period
period end period (1) Month end period end

(In thousands)
At or for the year ended December 31, 2007:
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings ........ $ 25,000 $ 2,701 % 25,000 5.10% 4.67%
Federal Funds purchased...............cccoeeeen. - - - - -
Repurchase agreementsd other interest bearing

[I@bilitieS ... 27,95¢ 29,87: 35,47 3.78 2.82
Total ..o $ 52,956 $ 32,574 3.89 3.69
At or for the year ended December 20(6:
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings ........ $ - $ 6,668 $ 31,500 5.13% - %
Federal Funds purchased...............cccccenee. - 152 - 5.09 -
Repurchase agreements and other interest bearing
liabilities .......cooeveire e 28,574 24,499 34,052 3.27 4.07
TOtal oo $ 28,574 $ 31,319 3.67 4.07
At or for the year ended December 20(5:
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings ........ $ - $ 506 $ - 2.90% - %
Federal Funds purchased............c..cccoeeeee. - 136 - 3.04 -
Repurchase agreements and other interest bearing
liaDIlItIES ... 24,929 23,152 25,252 2.22 2.95

$ 24929 $ 23,884 2.25 2.95

(1) Calculations are based on daily averages wheréabl@iand monthly averages otherwise.

Capital Resources At December 31, 2007, our total stockholders’igowas $58.9 million, and our equity to
asset ratio was 8.01%. At December 31, 2006, atat stockholders’ equity was $53.8 million, and equity to
asset ratio was 7.77%.

The Federal Reserve Board's risk-based guidelistablsh a risk-adjusted ratio, relating capitadttierent
categories of assets and off-balance sheet expgsureh as loan commitments and standby lettersedit. These
guidelines place a strong emphasis on tangiblekbtdder’s equity as the core element of the capitede, with
appropriate recognition of other components of tedypiAt December 31, 2007, our Tier 1 capitalaatas 10.28%,
while our total risk-based capital ratio was 11.53%éth of which exceed the capital minimums esshlgld in the
risk-based capital requirements.
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Our risk-based capital ratios at December 31, 200@6 and 2005 are presented below.
RISK-BASED CAPITAL
December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Tier 1 capital
Stockholders’ equity..........ccoceeeeerveeeimne.. $ 58,934 $ 53,820 $ 46,255
Intangible assetsS......ccccccvvveeeiiiiiiiccee (5,942) (671) (823)

Unrealized (appreciation) depreciation
on available-for-sale securities and

derivative instruments............cccc..... (600) 95 473
Trust preferred securities (1)............... 19,000 17,972 15,576
Total Tier 1 capital 71,392 71,216 61,481
Tier 2 capital
Qualifying allowance for loan losses... 8,683 6,106 6,704
Trust preferred securities(1)................ - 1,028 4,012
Total Tier 2 capital.........cccvvvvveeeeen. 8,683 7,134 10,716
Total risk-based capital.................. $ 80,075 $ 78,350 $ 72,197
Risk weighted assets............cccveeeeeeieennen. $ 694,318 $ 628,521 599,880
Ratios at end of period
Total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio 11.53% 12.47% 12.04%
Tier 1 capital to average assets ratio
(leverage ratio) .....ccccceeveeeeeeeeeeiiiiceen, 9.86% 10.29% 8.86%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
= L1 [o RS PRRR 10.28% 11.33% 10.25%
Minimum guidelines
Total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Tier 1 capital to average assets ratio
(leverage ratio) ......cccceeeeeeeeeeiieiiiiceee 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
FALO ..ot 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

(1) Federal Reserve guidelines for calculation of Tliecapital limits the amount of cumulative trust fereed
securities which can be included in Tier 1 captita?5% of total Tier 1 capital (Tier 1 capital befaeduction
of intangibles). Approximately $19.0 million, $08million and $15.6 million of the trust preferredcurities
have been included as Tier 1 capital as of DecerBhef007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The reimgin
balance of the trust preferred securities have beuded as Tier 2 capital.
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Contractual Obligations
Our known contractual obligations outstanding aBeéember 31, 2007 are presented below.

Payments due by Period (In thousands)

Less than : More than 5
Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Time Deposit Obligations  $ 250,457 $ 179,375 $ 60,178 $ 9,752 $ 1,152
Short-term Debt Obligations 25,000 25,000 - - -
Long-term Debt Obligations 80,906 11,140 2,368 24,777 42,621
Total Obligations $ 356,363 $ 215515 $ 62,546 $ 34529 $ 43,773

Inflation

The consolidated financial statements and relasta presented in this report have been preparacciordance
with accounting principles generally accepted ia tnited States of America, which require the mesment of
financial position and operating results in ternfishistorical dollars without considering changestlie relative
purchasing power of money over time due to inflatidJnlike most industrial companies, substantiallyof our
assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. aA®sult, interest rates have a more significargaith on our
performance than the effects of general levelsnfiftion. Interest rates do not necessarily maveahe same
direction or in the same magnitude as inflationdditional discussion of the impact of interest ratenges is
included in Item 7A: Qualitative and Quantitatives€losure About Market Risk. In addition, we das# the
estimated fair value of our financial instrumemntsaccordance with Statement of Financial Accoungigndards
No. 107. See Note 18 to the consolidated finarsta&tbments included in this report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company enters into off-balance sheet arrangesne the ordinary course of business. Our ofeheé
sheet arrangements generally are limited to comemtsto extend credit, mortgage loans in the psoa#ds
origination and forward commitments to sell thosertigage loans, letters of credit and lines of dredi

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to fera customer as long as there is no violatiomrof
condition established in the agreement. They gélgdrave fixed expiration dates or other terminatauses. The
commitments extend over varying periods of timehwiite majority being disbursed within a one-yeaiqae Since
a portion of the commitments may expire withoutnigedrawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirementch Eastomer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on se-4y-case
basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if de®mecessary, is based on management’s credit ¢ialuz the
counterparty. Collateral held varies, but mayudel accounts receivable, inventory, property, panat equipment,
commercial real estate and residential real estAteDecember 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding
commitments to originate loans aggregating appratety $31,074,000.

Mortgage loans in the process of origination repnésmounts that the Company plans to fund withiiornal
period of 60 to 90 days and which are intendeds&be to investors in the secondary market. Forwandmitments
to sell mortgage loans are obligations to delieank at a specified price on or before a specitiagte date. The
Bank acquires such commitments to reduce marké&t ais mortgage loans in the process of originatiod a
mortgage loans held for sale. Total mortgage ldanthe process of origination amounted to $3,04@,and
mortgage loans held for sale amounted to $10,908d810December 31, 2007. As a result, we had cosabin
forward commitments to sell mortgage loans totaApgroximately $14,027,000. Mortgage loans ingrexess of
origination represent commitments to originate fanhboth fixed and variable rates.

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issu®y the Company to guarantee the performance of a

customer to a third party. Those guarantees aimaply issued to support public and private borirogv
arrangements, including commercial paper, bondnfimy and similar transactions. The credit riskolved in
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issuing letters of credit is essentially the samé¢hat involved in extending loans to customerbe Tompany had
total outstanding letters of credit amounting t¢289,000 at December 31, 2007.

Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a cust@méong as there is no violation of any condigatablished
in the contract. Lines of credit generally havesfl expiration dates. Since a portion of the lirey expire without
being drawn upon, the total unused lines do noessarily represent future cash requirements. Eastomer’s
creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-cass.bd$ie amount of collateral obtained, if deemedessary, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the tegpauty. Collateral held varies, but may includzaints
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipthecommercial real estate and residential real testa
Management uses the same credit policies in gmfities of credit as it does for on-balance shegtriments. At
December 31, 2007 unused lines of credit borrowagggegated approximately $202,380,000.

Recent and Future Accounting Requirements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation Na. A&ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of SFAS No. 1q%IN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threghahd measurement attribute for
the financial statement recognition and measuremattax position taken or expected to be takea iax return.
The interpretation also provides guidance on deyeition, classification, interest and penaltiescamting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. FINid&ffective for fiscal years beginning after Detem15, 2006.
The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 20@¥ tlee adoption had no significant impact on thenGany’s
consolidated financial statements. The Company suftsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.gdéval
jurisdiction and the state jurisdictions of Kansaml Missouri. With few exceptions, the Companydslonger
subject to U.S Federal or state income tax examimaby tax authorities for years before 2004.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement1N7,Fair Value Measurementsvhich provides
guidance for using fair value to measure assetsliabdities. The statement defines fair valuetablishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally gqmted accounting principles, and expands disclssaieut fair
value measurements. FASB Statement No. 157 appiider other accounting pronouncements that readprire
permit fair value measurements and does not reguiyenew fair value measurements. This statenseefféctive
for financial statements issued for fiscal yeargiting after November 15, 2007. The Company igenily
evaluating the impact, if any, that FASB Statenmdot 157 may have on the Company’s financial statéme

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementl§8, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities-Including an Amendment to FAStatement No. 115This standard permits an entity to
choose to measure many financial instruments anticeother items at fair value. Most of the psions in
Statement 159 are elective; however, the amendrnerfASB Statement No. 115ccounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securitiaggplies to all entities with available-for-saledarading securities. Some
requirements apply differently to entities thatrdut report net income. The FASB's stated objedtivissuing this
standard is as follows: "to improve financial refpay by providing entities with the opportunity toitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuriigted assets and liabilities differently withdnatving to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions."

The fair value option established by Statementfdéi@nits all entities to choose to measure eligtielas at fair
value at specified election dates. A businessyentit report unrealized gains and losses on itéonsvhich the fair
value option has been elected in earnings (or @nqibrformance indicator if the business entitysdoet report
earnings) at each subsequent reporting date. Theafae option: (a) may be applied instrument hstiument, with
a few exceptions, such as investments otherwissuated for by the equity method; (b) is irrevocatieless a new
election date occurs); and (c) is applied onlyrttre instruments and not to portions of instrunsenStatement 159
is effective as of the beginning of an entity'sfifiscal year that begins after November 15, 200fe Company is
currently evaluating the impact, if any, that FASBatement No. 159 may have on the Company’s fim&nci
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No(rB¥ised 2007)Business Combinationahich replaced
Statement No. 141. Statement No. 141R retainguh&@amental requirements of Statement No. 141 rénises
certain principles, including the definition of aiginess combination, the recognition and measureofeassets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business auatibn, the accounting for goodwill, and financ&htement
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disclosure. This statement is effective for anmeiods beginning after December 15, 2008. Thmgany is
evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of FAS&tement No. 141R will have on the Company’s obdated
financial statements.
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ltem 7A: Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure About Market Risk

As a continuing part of our financial strategy, agempt to manage the impact of fluctuations in kaar
interest rates on our net interest income. THigreentails providing a reasonable balance betweatarest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and maintenancéyeeld. Our funds management policy is establishg our Bank
Board of Directors and monitored by our Asset/LipiManagement Committee. Our funds managemefitypo
sets standards within which we are expected toabperThese standards include guidelines for expdsuinterest
rate fluctuations, liquidity, loan limits as a pentage of funding sources, exposure to corresporukmks and
brokers, and reliance on non-core deposits. Owmddumanagement policy also establishes the repgortin
requirements to our Bank Board of Directors. Gwestment policy complements our funds managenaiypby
establishing criteria by which we may purchase sBes. These criteria include approved types efusities,
brokerage sources, terms of investment, qualitydsteds, and diversification.

We use an asset/liability modeling system to aralyre Company's current sensitivity to instantasesnd
permanent changes in interest rates. The systamiaies the Company's asset and liability basepamécts future
net interest income results under several inteéedstassumptions. This allows management to view¢hanges in
interest rates will affect the spread between thlelyeceived on assets and the cost of depositbamowed funds.

The asset/liability modeling system is also usedanalyze the net economic value of equity at rinklen
instantaneous shifts in interest rates. The "nehemic value of equity at risk" is defined as tharket value of
assets less the market value of liabilities plusimithe market value of any off-balance sheet ijposit By
effectively looking at the present value of alluté cash flows on or off the balance sheet, theo@homic value of
equity modeling takes a longer-term view of intérase risk.

We strive to maintain a position such that curi@rd@nges in interest rates will not affect net ies¢income or
the economic value of equity by more than 5%, pbasis points. The following table sets forth éstimated
percentage change in the Bank's net interest inamraethe next twelve month period and net econoralae of
equity at risk at December 31, 2007 based on tiieated instantaneous and permanent changes ieshtates.

Net Interest Net Economic
Income Value of
Changes in Interest Rates (next 12 months) Equity at Risk
200 basis point rise 1.92 % (5.92 %)
Base Rate Scenario - -
200 basis point decline 3.91 % 3.98 %

The above table indicates that, at December 317,20the event of a sudden and sustained increase
decrease in prevailing market rates, our net isteéreome would be expected to increase. The Coyjmat a
near zero gap position. This is due to the $4lil®omincrease in our money market account balandering the
year as a result of the acquisition of Unison Bapctnc. and subsidiary, Western National Bankyal as internal
growth. This increase in money market accountrzalgs, combined with a near zero gap position, gesvithe
Company with greater control over the cost of utsding base and enables it to expand its net stt@nargin in an
increasing or decreasing rate environment. Theeabable indicates a greater expansion of themetdst margin
in a decreasing rate environment verses an incrgaaie environment, and that is due to the fldbesBank has
placed on its loans over the last several yearhe floors would limit the decline in yield earned the loan
portfolio in a declining rate environment while tbest of funding would decrease resulting in a gneaet interest
margin. Another consideration with a rising intreate scenario is the impact on mortgage loanae€ing, which
would likely decline, leading to lower loans helat fale fee income, though the impact is diffidaltquantify or
project.
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The above table also indicates that, at December2@Q7, in the event of a sudden increase in pliegai
market rates, the economic value of our equity daldcrease. In other words the loss of our assemttd exceed
the gains on our liabilities in this interest ratenario. Currently, under a falling rate enviremt) the economic
value of our equity would increase. In other wotftks gain on our assets would exceed the loss ohatilities in
this interest rate scenario. The loss in a falliatg environment is similar to the gain in a gshate environment
mainly due to the near zero gap position of the Qamy.

The following table summarizes the anticipated mités or repricing of our interest-earning assatsl
interest-bearing liabilities as of December 31, 20tased on the information and assumptions stt fiow.

INTEREST-RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Expected Maturity or Repricing Date
(In thousands)

0-90 Days  91-365 Days 1 year lto2years 2tob5years Thereafter Total
Interest-Earning Assets:
Fixed Rate Loans...................... § 33446 3 73,392 $ 106,838 $ 44,157 % 92,036 $ 31,207 $ 274,238
Average Interest Rate.. . 7.58% 7.50 % 7.53% 7.61% 7.86 % 7.52% 7.65 %
Variable Rate Loans......... 305,338 16,931 322,269 5,592 5,525 - 333,386
Average Interest Rate.. 7.54% 7.88 % 7.56% 7.61% 7.90% - % 7.57 %
Fixed Rate Investments... . 2,500 5,210 7,710 10,997 38,186 18,286 75,179
Average Interest Rate...... . 4.30% 5.03 % 4.79% 4.96% 5.16 % 5.66 % 5.22%
Variable Rate Investments........ - - - - - - -
Average Interest Rate........... - - - - - - -
Interest Bearing Deposits 312 - 312 - - - 312
Average Interest Rate............ 4.06% - 4.06% - - - 4.06 %

Federal Funds Sold......... . - - - - - - -
Average Interest Rate -% - -% - - - - %
Total interest-earning asset§ 341,596 $ 95,533 $ 437,129 $ 60,746 $ 135747  $ 49,493 $ 683,115

Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

Interest-bearing demand........... § 35983 $ - $ 35983 % - $ - $ - $ 35983
Average Interest Rate........... 2.14% - 2.14% - - - 2.14%
Savings and money market....... 162,003 - 162,003 - - - 162,003
Average Interest Rate...... . 3.90% - 3.90% - - - 3.90 %
Time deposits.................. 62,696 116,679 179,375 49,117 20,813 1,152 250,457
Average Interest Rate.. 4.84% 5.01% 4.95% 5.19% 4.32% 4.31% 4.94 %
Funds borrowed............... .. 91,256 31,008 122,264 1,169 8,477 3,032 134,942
Average Interest Rate........... 4.61% 4.55% 4.60% 5.32% 4.58% 5.19% 4.62 %
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ..., §351,938 $ 147,687 $ 499625 $ 50,286 $ 29290 $ 4,184 $ 583,385
Cumulative:
Rate sensitive assets (RSA).$ 341,596 $ 437,129 $ 437,129 $ 497,875 $ 633,622 $ 683,115 $ 683,115
Rate sensitive liabilities (RSL) 351,938 499,625 499,625 549,911 579,201 583,385 583,385
GAP (GAP = RSA-RSL) (10,342) (62,496) (62,496) (52,036) 54,421 99,730 99,730
RSA/RSL ..o, 97.06% 87.49% 87.49% 90.54% 109.40% 117.10%
RSA/Total assets... . 46.40 59.37 59.37 67.62 86.06 92.79
RSL/Total assets... 47.80 67.86 67.86 74.69 78.67 79.24
GAP/Total assets... . (1.40) (8.49) (8.49) (7.07) 7.39 13.55
GAPIRSA .....ooveeieesererseen (3.03) (14.30) (14.30) (10.45) 8.59 14.60

Certain assumptions are contained in the above tabich affect the presentation. Although certsrets and
liabilities may have similar maturities or periotis repricing, they may react in different degreeschanges in
market interest rates. The interest rates oniceftpes of assets and liabilities may fluctuatadvance of changes
in market interest rates, while interest rates tireotypes of assets and liabilities lag behindnglea in market
interest rates.

Disclosures about fair values of financial instrumse which reflect changes in market prices andstatan be
found in note 18 to the consolidated financialestagnts included in this report.
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Item 8: Financial Statements and Supplementary a

See index to Blue Valley Ban Corp. financial statats on page F-1.

Item 9: Changes in and Disagreements with Accountds on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure

No items are reportable.

Iltem 9A: Controls and Procedures

Management, including the Company’s Chief Executdfficer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design goeration of the Company’s disclosure controls arat@dures as
of December 31, 2007. Based upon the evaluati@magement concluded that the Company’s disclosamtrals
and procedures are effective to ensure that alemadtinformation requiring disclosure in this aahweport was
made known to them in a timely manner.

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@ing adequate internal control over financigdaeing
for the Company. During the year, the Company maaleignificant changes in internal controls ovieamcial
reporting or in other factors that could materiaffect the Company’s internal control over finaceporting.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over FinariReporting:

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaging,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules E§-Bnd 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and wiitle
participation of management, including the Compan@hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O#ic we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofit@rnal control over financial reporting basedtba framework
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issugdh®e Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Theadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the dwonk in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworky o
management concluded that our internal control émancial reporting was effective as of Decembkr2007.

This annual report does not include an attestatort of the Company’s registered public accounfirm
regarding internal control over financial reportindanagement’s report was not subject to attestaly the

Company’s registered public accounting firm purduém temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that permit the Company to provide angnagement’s report to this annual report.

Iltem 9B: Other Information

No items are reportable.
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Part 111
tem  10: Directors, Executive Officers and Corporae Governance

Information regarding the Company’s directors amdcetive officers is included in the Company’s Brox
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockhiddand is hereby incorporated by reference.

Information regarding the Bank’s directors and exize officers is included in Part | of this ForrA-K under
the caption “Directors and Executive Officers of fRegistrant.”

The Company has adopted a code of conduct thateappl our principal executive, financial, and agtiing
officers. A copy of our code of conduct can beagird free of charge by contacting us directly at:

Investor Relations

11935 Riley

Overland Park, KS 66213
913.338.1000

Email: ir@bankbv.com

We intend to disclose any amendments to, or waifvers, any provision of our code of conduct thaplés to
our chief executive officer, chief financial offigeor chief accounting officer by posting such imfation to our
website located at www.BankBV.com.

tem  11: Executive Compensation

This information is included in the Company’s Pr&atement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockbwdd
and is hereby incorporated by reference.

ltem 12: Security Ownership of Certain Beneficih Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

This information is included in the Company’s Prd&atement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockbrdd
and is hereby incorporated by reference.

tem  13: Certain Relationships, Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The Bank periodically makes loans to our execubfficers and directors, the members of their imratali
families and companies with which they are affdit As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had agtgdgans
outstanding to such persons of approximately $&tlBon, which represented 34.42% of our stockhoddequity
of $58.9 million on that date. These loans:
* were made in the ordinary course of business;

» were made on substantially the same terms, inuduiditerest rates and collateral, as those prenggdt the time
for comparable transactions with other persons; and

« did not involve more than the normal risk of cotlbility or present other unfavorable features.
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Information regarding Director Independence is udeld in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is hereby inocoaped by reference.

ltem 14: Principal Accounting Fees and Services

This information is included in the Company’s Prd&atement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockbrdd
and is hereby incorporated by reference.

Part IV
Item 15: Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
€)) The financial statements and financial statememdales listed in the accompanying index to

consolidated financial statements and financidestant schedules are filed as part of this ForrK10-
(b) The exhibits listed in the accompanying exhibitdrdre filed as part of this Form 10-K.

(c) None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regi has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Robert D. Regnier
Robert D. Regnier, President,
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed by th
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities listed on the dates indicated

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Robert D. Regnier
Robert D. Regnier, President,
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Mark A. Fortino
Mark A. Fortino, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial [and Accounting] Officer)

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Donald H. Alexander
Donald H. Alexander, Director

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Michael J. Brown
Michael J. Brown, Director

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Thomas A. McDonnell
Thomas A. McDonnell, Director

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Anne D. St. Peter
Anne D. St. Peter, Director

Date: March 26, 2008 By: /s/ Robert D. Taylor
Robert D. Taylor, Director
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21.1

Amended and Restated Articles of IncorporatibBlue Valley Ban Corp. *
Bylaws, as amended, of Blue Valley Ban Corp. *

1998 Equity Incentive Plan. *

1994 Stock Option Plan. *

Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities. *

Form of Indenture dated April 10, 2003, betweeneBlalley Ban Corp. and Wilmington Trust
Company **

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated AQy 2003 **
Guarantee Agreement dated April 10, 2003 **

Fee Agreement dated April 10, 2003 **

Specimen of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Belsurity **

Form of Indenture dated as of July 29, 2005 betvdaa Valley Ban Corp. and Wilmington
Trust Company***

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated28)l2005***
Guarantee Agreement dated July 29, 2005***
Promissory Note of Blue Valley Building dated Jafy, 1994. *

Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents and $g&greement between Blue Valley
Building and Businessmen's Assurance Company ofrismedated July 15, 1994. *

Assignment of Leases and Rents between Blue VBIlgiging and Businessmen's Assurance
Company of America dated July 15, 1994. *

Line of Credit Note with JP Morgan Chase dated J5€2005 ****
Term Note with JP Morgan Chase dated June 15, 2005

Agreement and Plan of Merger between Unison Bandoo, BVBC Acquisition [, Inc. and Blue
Valley Ban Corp., dated as of November 2, 2006*****

Acquisition Agreement and Plan of Merger among Narid National Bank, Blue Valley Ban
Corp. and Western National Bank, dated as of Mar@0Q7*****

Purchase and Assumption Agreement among Northlatidizval Bank, Bank of Blue Valley and
Blue Valley Ban Corp., dated as of March 2, 2007***

Statement regarding computation of per share eggniPlease see p. F-12.

Subsidiaries of Blue Valley Ban Corp.
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31.1

31.2

32.1
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*k%
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Consent of BKD, LLP.
Certification of the Chief Executive Officaunguant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Financial Officeagguant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

Certification of the Chief Executive OfficancaChief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed with the Commission on April 10, 2000 askxhibit to Blue Valley's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 1, File N8-3&328. Exhibit incorporated herein by

reference.

Filed with the Commission on March 19, 2004 asEhibit to Blue Valley’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Exhibit incorporated herein by referenc

Filed with the Commission on July 29, 2005 asExhibit to Blue Valley’s Current Report on
Form 8-K. Exhibit incorporated herein by reference

Filed with the Commission on March 24, 2005 as Exhibit to Blue Valley’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Exhibit incorporated herein by referenc

Filed with the Commission on March 28, 200% @n Exhibit to Blue Valley’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Exhibit incorporated herein by referenc
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Audit Committee,

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Blue Valley Ban Corp.

Overland Park, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Blue Valley Ban Corp. (the “Comparag)of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related cdasedi statements of income, stockholders’ equitycash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Decelbe2007. These consolidated financial statesnant the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Ospoasibility is to express an opinion on these obdated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaiBlo
(United States). Those standards require that ke @and perform the audits to obtain reasonablerasse about
whether the financial statements are free of matenisstatement. The Company is not required te haor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdrik@r financial reporting. Our audits includechswleration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis forigieing auditing procedures that are appropriatiaéncircumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on dffectiveness of the Company's internal controgrofinancial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinid@ur audits also included examining, on a tesishaevidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiahrstatements, assessing the accounting prirscipked and
significant estimates made by management and diuaduthe overall financial statement presentatidie believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeneferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the
financial position of Blue Valley Ban Corp. as oé&mber 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results opasations and its

cash flows for each of the three years in the pleeioded December 31, 2007 in conformity with actiognprinciples
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BKD, LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
March 25, 2008
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
2007 2006
Cash and due from banks $ 17,827 $ 21,499
Interest bearing deposits in other financial ingitins 312 356
Federal funds sold - 5,375
Cash and cash equivalents 18,139 27,230
Available-for-sale securities 76,871 87,206
Mortgage loans held for sale 10,978 21,805
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $8,982$6,106 in 2007 and 587,664 522,409
2006, respectively
Premises and equipment, net 18,778 17,953
Foreclosed assets held for sale, net 2,523 717
Interest receivable 4,621 4,200
Deferred income taxes 2,083 2,276
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,571 1,305
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, Federal Reserve Bk, and
other securities 7,043 6,447
Goodwill 4,821 290
Core deposit intangible asset, at amortized cost 1,121 381
Total assets $ 736,213 $ 692,219

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(In thousands, except share data)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2007
LIABILITIES
Deposits
Demand $ 87,927
Savings, NOW and money market 197,986
Time 250,457
Total deposits 536,370
Other interest-bearing liabilities 29,036
Short-term debt 25,000
Long-term debt 80,906
Interest payable and other liabilities 5,967
Total liabilities 677,279
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock
Common stock, par value $1 per share;
Authorized 15,000,000 shares; issued and outistgn
2007 — 2,439,655 shares; 2006 — 2,409,490 shares 2,440
Additional paid-in capital 10,312
Retained earnings 45,592
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)phgtcome tax
(credits) of $394 in 2007 and $(88) in 2006 590
Total stockholders’ equity 58,934
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $367213

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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$ 94,823
156,069
284,972
535,864

29,558

67,019
5,958

638,399

2,409
9,561
41,982

(132
53,820

$ 692,219



BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)

2007 2006 2005
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans $ 47,194 $ 44,537 87,492
Federal funds sold and other short-term investsent 557 256 580
Available-for-sale securities 4,466 4,039 2,317
Total interest income 52,217 48,832 40,389
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest-bearing demand deposits 656 97 94
Savings and money market deposit accounts 626,3 4,356 3,861
Other time deposits 13,134 11,254 9,171
Federal funds purchased and other interest-bebainigities 1,181 1,023 540
Short-term debt 138 342 17
Long-term debt, net 4,111 3,890 4,310
Total interest expense 25,582 20,962 17,993
NET INTEREST INCOME 26,635 27,870 22,396
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 2,855 1,255 230
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR 23,780 26,615 22,166
LOAN LOSSES
NONINTEREST INCOME
Loans held for sale fee income 3,160 5,046 408
Service fees 2,830 2,491 2,166
Gains on available for sale securities, net 105 - -
Other income 1,105 1,344 1,727
Total noninterest income 7,200 8.881 11,301
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits 13,570 14,737 15,986
Net occupancy expense 3,200 3,059 3,307
Other operating expense 7,447 6,578 6,841
Total noninterest expense 24,217 24,374 26,134
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 6,763 11,122 7,333
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 2,275 4,199 2,764
NET INCOME $ 4,488 $ 6,923 $ 4,569
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE $ 1.86 $ 2.93 $ 1.95
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE $ 1.84 $ 2.88 $ 1.91
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE $ 0.36 $ 0.30 $ 0.25

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Comprehensive Common Paid-In Retained Unearned Gdrapsive
Income Stock Capital Earnings ~ Compensation Incdroes) Total
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 $ 2,327 $ 8,099 $31,809 $  (594) $ (257) 384
Issuance of 54,960 shares of common stock 55 1,113 (355) 813
Dividends on common stock ($0.25 per
share) (596) (596)
Net income 4,569 4,569 4,569
Restricted stock earned, net of forfeitures 301 301
Change in unrealized depreciation on
available-for-sale securities, net of
income taxes (credit) of $(144) (216 (219 (219
$ 4,353
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 $ 2,382 $ 9,212 $35,782 648 $ (473 $46,255
Issuance of 27,444 shares of common stock 27 512 539
Dividends on common stock ($0.30 per
share) (723) (723)
Net income 6,923 6,923 6,923
Restricted stock earned, net of forfeitures 485 485
Reclassification of unearned compensation
in accordance with adoption of SFAS No.
123R - (648) 648 -
Change in derivative financial instrument,
net of income taxes of $51 76 76 76
Change in unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securities, net of
income taxes of $177 265 265 265
$ 7,264
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 $ 2,409 $ 9,561 $41,982 $ — $ (139 $53,820
Issuance of 10,182 shares of restricted
stock, net of forfeitures 10 292 302
Issuance of 15,425 shares of common stock
through stock options exercised 16 327 343
Issuance of 4,558 shares of common stock
for the employee stock purchase plan 5 132 137
Dividends on common stock ($0.36 per
share) (878) (878)
Net income 4,488 4,488 4,488
Change in derivative financial instrument,
net of income taxes (credit) of $(47) (70) (70) (70)
Change in unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securities, net of
income taxes of $528 792 792 792
$ 5210
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007 $ 2,440 $10,312 $45,592 $ - $ 590 $58,934

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casiv fl
From operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Accretion of premiums on securities
Provision for loan losses
Provision for other real estate
Deferred income taxes
Stock dividend on FHLB securities
Net gain on available-for-sale securities
Net (gain) loss on sale of foreclosed assets
Net (gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment
Restricted stock earned and forfeited
Compensation expense related to the employek ptochase plan
Originations of loans held for sale
Proceeds from the sale of loans held for sale
Changes in:
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Interest payable and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net originations of loans
Proceeds from sales of loan participations
Purchase of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of foreclosed assets f eapenses
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale seesriti
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-saleusées
Purchases of available-for-sale securities

Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock, FeBasdrve Bank stock,

and other securities

Proceeds from the redemption of Federal Home LBamk stock, Federal

Reserve Bank stock, and other securities
Sale of Western National Bank charter and othsetas
Purchase of Unison Bancorp, Inc. and subsidigt/phcash received
Proceeds from other investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net (decrease) increase in demand deposits, moraket, NOW and

savings accounts
Net (decrease) increase in time deposits

Net (decrease) increase in federal funds purchasether interest-bearing

liabilities

Net proceeds from short-term debt

Repayments of long-term debt

Proceeds from long-term debt

Dividends paid on common stock

Net proceeds the sale of additional stock

Net cash provided by (used in) financing atiéhsi

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

Loans transferred to foreclosed assets held fer sal

Restricted stock issued

Cash dividends declared on common stock

Interest paid

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (see Nbte 2

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2007

$ 4,488

1,606
(30)
2,855
5
(1,134)
(264)
(105)
97
316
17
(185,809)
96,686

(232)
248
(172
528,

(55,168)
13,23
(649)

1,133
6,105
55,250

@m,9

(314)

686
392
(6,255)
123
(33432

7,042
(37,777

(1,426)
25,000
(1,763)
15,000
(723)
466
5,819
(9,001)
37,2
$ 18139

$ 3,023
$ 10
$ 878
$ 25175
$ 561
$ 33,668

2006

$ 6,923

1,471
(92)
1,255
40
260
(275)

(12)
6

485
19
(336,254)
328,355

(828)
3,455
(3.987
821

(28,689)
500

(671)

930

36,310
(22,995)

(12,294

(28,794)
35,317

3,270

(21,087)
10,000
(596)
538
(1,359
(12,827)
40,057
$ 27,230

964

$ 237
20,587
4,035

BpwPen P&

2005

$ 4,569

1,857
(44)
230
149
(353)
34
(344)
301
(675,636)
705,874

(997)
(1,546)

3,293

37,387

(4,334)
6,400
(707)
993
3,002
26,440
(60,393)

(150)

(28.749

(25,182)
31,877

3,907

(23,269)
21,244
(465)
813
8.925
17,563
22,494
$ 40,057

$ 1,102
$ 355
$ 596

$ 17,742

$ 1,289
$ —



BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Company is a holding company for Bank of Blual&y (the Bank), Blue Valley Building Corp., BVBC
Capital Trust Il and BVBC Capital Trust Il throud®0% ownership of each. In addition, the Companms 49%
of Homeland Title, LLC.

The Bank is primarily engaged in providing a fudihge of banking and mortgage services to individunal
corporate customers in southern Johnson Countysd&n The Bank also originates residential mortgdoeally
and nationwide through its InternetMortgage.comsiteb The Bank is subject to competition from otfieancial
institutions and also to regulation by certain fadland state agencies that perform periodic exations.

Blue Valley Building Corp. is primarily engaged leasing real property at its facilities in OverlaRdrk and
Leawood, Kansas.

BVBC Capital Trust Il and 11l are Delaware businésssts created in 2003 and 2005, respectivelgffar trust
preferred securities and to purchase the Compguagisr subordinated debentures. The Trusts hawastef 30
years, but may dissolve earlier as provided irrttnest agreements.

Homeland Title, LLC is a company providing titlecagettlement services.

Operating Segment

The Company provides community banking servicegutn its subsidiary bank, including such productd a
services as loans; time deposits, checking andngavaccounts; mortgage originations; trust seryicexl
investment services. These activities are repated single operating segment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedthe
United States of America requires management toenegkimates and assumptions that affect the reparteunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgimgassets and liabilities at the date of the fir@rstatements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhenreporting period. Actual results could diffeom those
estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceetitd significant change include the determinatidntie
allowance for loan losses and the valuation of esthte acquired in connection with foreclosurem @atisfaction
of loans. In connection with the determinationtloé allowance for loan losses and the valuatiofocéclosed
assets held for sale, management obtains indepeapleraisals for significant properties.

Management believes that the allowances for loasel® and the valuation of foreclosed assets hekhfe are
adequate. While management uses available infaymtd recognize losses on loans and foreclosestsabgld for
sale, changes in economic conditions may necessitatision of these estimates in future years. addition,
various regulatory agencies, as an integral patheir examination process, periodically review tbempany’s
allowances for loan losses and valuation of foremtbassets held for sale. Such agencies may egtgiiCompany
to recognize additional losses based on their judsn of information available to them at the timetleir
examination.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of Blue Valley Ban Corp. and its 100% owned
subsidiaries. Significant intercompany accounts aansactions have been eliminated in consolidatio

F-8



BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid investments witigioal maturities of three months or less to bshca
equivalents. At December 31, 2007, cash equivalemmsisted of federal funds sold.

The Bank is required to maintain reserve fundsaishcand/or on deposit with the Federal Reserve .BEm&
reserve required at December 31, 2007 was $698,000.

I nvestment in Securities

Available-for-sale securities, which include angwity for which the Company has no immediate ptasell,
but which may be sold in the future, are carriethtvalue. Realized gains and losses, basedramtized cost of
the specific security, are included in other inconunrealized gains and losses are recorded, refated income
tax effects, in other comprehensive income. Pramiand discounts are amortized and accreted, tésggcto
interest income using a method which approximdtedavel-yield method over the period to maturity.

Interest on investments in debt securities is metlin income when earned.

Other | nvestments

The Company, as a member of the Federal Home Lamk BFHLB), Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) and
Bankers Bank of Kansas (BBOK) systems, is requicethaintain an investment in capital stock of FHERB and
BBOK. No ready market exists for the stock, arelgtocks have no quoted market value. Such stoacorded at
cost.

The Company uses the equity method of accountingHfameland Title, LLC. As such, the Company’s
investment in Homeland Title, LLC is included inh®t Assets and its share of Homeland Title, LL&G$income
is included in Other Income.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at thestoa¥ cost or fair value, determined using an agate basis.
Write-downs to fair value are recognized as a ahaogearnings at the time the decline in value xceorward
commitments to sell mortgage loans are acquiredetiuce market risk on mortgage loans in the proodéss
origination and mortgage loans held for sale. Anmsyaid to investors to obtain forward commitmeiitany, are
deferred until such time as the related loans atd. s The fair values of the forward commitmentg aot
recognized in the financial statements if theimermatch those of the underlying mortgage. Gantb lasses
resulting from sales of mortgage loans are recaghizhen the respective loans are sold to invest@ains and
losses are determined by the difference betweeséliag price and the carrying amount of the loaoksl, net of
discounts collected or paid, commitment fees paid eonsidering a normal servicing rate. Fees vedefrom
borrowers to guarantee the funding of mortgageddaid for sale are recognized as income or expehsa the
loans are sold or when it becomes evident thatdnemitment will not be used.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and abilibotd for the foreseeable future or until matuntypay-offs
are reported at their outstanding principal balaadgisted for any charge-offs, the allowance fanldosses, and
any deferred fees or costs on originated loansuaagnortized premiums or discounts on purchasedsloamerest
income is reported using the interest method aadlidies amortization of net deferred loan fees theroan term.
Generally, loans are placed on non-accrual statomaty days past due and interest is considetedsa unless the
loan is well-secured and in the process of colbecti When interest accrual is discontinued, allaitpaccrued
interest is reversed against interest income. ifiteeest on these loans is generally accountedria cost recovery
basis, meaning interest is not recognized untilftiiepast due balance has been collected. Loams lme returned
to accrual status when all the principal and irder@mounts contractually due are brought curreit farture
payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance is management's estimate of prodabges which have occurred as of the balance slaet
based on management's evaluation of risk in tha fmatfolio. The allowance for loan losses is @ased by
provisions charged to expense and reduced by ldzarged off when management believes the uncdiiégtiof a
loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recovefiany, are credited to the allowance.

The adequacy of the allowance is evaluated on athhomasis by management based on management's
periodic review of the collectibility of the loams consideration of historical experience, the matand volume of
the loan portfolio, adverse situations that magefthe borrower’s ability to repay, estimated eahi underlying
collateral and prevailing economic conditions. sTéivaluation is inherently subjective as it requiestimates that
are susceptible to significant revision as morerimiation becomes available. The Bank computeallisvance by
assigning specific reserves to impaired loans, tnath applies general reserve factors to the reghefloan
portfolio. A loan is considered impaired when, dzh®n current information and events, it is probatat the
Company will be unable to collect the schedulednpayts of principal or interest when due accordioghe
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factansidered by management when determining impairrimehide
payment status, collateral value and probabilitgalfecting scheduled principal and interest paytsevhen due.
Loans that experience insignificant payment dekays payment shortfalls generally are not classifisdmpaired.
Management determines the significance of paymelatyd and payment shortfalls on a case-by-cass,liaging
into consideration all of the circumstances surding the loan and the borrower, including the lengtt delay, the
reason for the delay, the borrower’s prior paynmrenbrd and the amount of the shortfall in relationhe principal
and interest owed.

Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis itherethe present value of expected future castsflo
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate,lban’s obtainable market price or the fair vadfi¢he collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent.

Premises and Equipment

Depreciable assets are stated at cost less acdechalapreciation. Depreciation is charged to esparsing
the straight-line method over the estimated udefes of the assets.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Continued)

Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Assets acquired by foreclosure or in settlemertetit and held for sale are valued at their estidntie value
as of the date of foreclosure, and a related vialallowance is provided for estimated costs b tbe assets.
Management evaluates the value of foreclosed alssktgor sale periodically and increases the vanaallowance
for any subsequent declines in fair value. Ina@eam the valuation allowance and gains/losses ab@s sof
foreclosed assets are included in non-interestresqss net.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If tiraplied fair value of goodwill is lower than itaying
amount an impairment of goodwill is indicated armbdwill is written down to its implied fair valueSubsequent
increases in goodwill value are not recognizedanfinancial statements. As a result of routineuah assessments,
no impairment of goodwill was recorded in 2007. eT¢hanges in carrying value of goodwill for yearsled
December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007

(In thousa)
Balance as of January 1, 2007 $ 290
Goodwill relating to acquisition of Unison
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary in 2007 4,531
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ 4,821

Core Deposit | ntangible Assets

Intangible assets are being amortized on the $irdilge basis over periods ranging from seven toyééars.
Such assets are periodically evaluated as to tteveeability of their carrying value.

Feelncome

Loan origination fees, net of direct originationsts) are recognized as income using the level-yigdthod
over the term of the loans.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to thé 201 2005 financial statements to conform to 6872
financial statement presentation. These reclassidins had no effect on net income.

Income Taxes
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniaethe tax effect of differences between the firiahstatement
and tax bases of assets and liabilities. A vabmadillowance is established to reduce deferredgagts if it is more

likely than not that a deferred tax asset will betrealized. The Company files consolidated incémxereturns
with its subsidiaries.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based ondlghted average number of shares outstanding degnb
year. Diluted earnings per share is computed usiagveighted average common shares and all patetitiitive
common shares outstanding during the year. Theuatation of per share earnings is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Net income $ 4488 $ 6,923 $ 4569
Average common shares outstanding 2,410,621 ,3652032 2,348,805
Average common share stock options outstanding 7,582 41,870 39,726
Average diluted common shares 2,438,203 _ 2,407,802 2,388,531

Basic earnings per share $ 1.86 $ 2.93 $ 1.95

Diluted earnings per share $ 184 $ 2.88 $ 1.91

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptegtbeisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004). Assuleof
adopting SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, the @omgid not record any additional compensation agpeas
no stock options had been granted in recent yeat®ptions granted were fully vested prior to adwptHowever,
on January 1, 2006, the Company reclassified $68800 unearned compensation related to previowstggnized
compensation for restricted share awards that batdeen vested as of that date to additional paichpital as these
awards represent equity awards as defined in SFAIRBR.

Recent and Future Accounting Reguirements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation Na. A&ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of SFAS No. 14#IN 48). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threghahd measurement attribute for
the financial statement recognition and measuremattax position taken or expected to be takea iax return.
The interpretation also provides guidance on deyeition, classification, interest and penaltiescamting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN id&ffective for fiscal years beginning after Detem15, 2006.
The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 20@i¥ tffee adoption had no significant impact on thenGany’s
consolidated financial statements. The Company suskidiaries file income tax returns in the U.gdéral
jurisdiction and the state jurisdictions of Kansaml Missouri. With few exceptions, the Companydslonger
subject to U.S Federal or state income tax examimaby tax authorities for years before 2004.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement1N7,Fair Value Measurementsvhich provides
guidance for using fair value to measure assetsliabdities. The statement defines fair valuetablishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally gqed accounting principles, and expands disclssaibeut fair
value measurements. FASB Statement No. 157 appiider other accounting pronouncements that reaprire
permit fair value measurements and does not requiyenew fair value measurements. This statensesfféctive
for financial statements issued for fiscal yeargiting after November 15, 2007. The Company igenily
evaluating the impact, if any, that FASB Statenm¢ot 157 may have on the Company’s financial statéme

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementll8, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities-Including an Amendment to FAStatement No. 115This standard permits an entity to
choose to measure many financial instruments anticeother items at fair value. Most of the psions in
Statement 159 are elective; however, the amendrndtASB Statement No. 11B8ccounting for Certain
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in Debt and Equity Securitiaggplies to all entities with available-for-saledarading securities. Some
requirements apply differently to entities thatmut report net income. The FASB's stated objedtivissuing this
standard is as follows: "to improve financial refpay by providing entities with the opportunity toitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measurilgted assets and liabilities differently withdnatving to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions."

The fair value option established by Statement g&@nits all entities to choose to measure eligitdens at fair
value at specified election dates. A businessyentit report unrealized gains and losses on itéonsvhich the fair
value option has been elected in earnings (or angibrformance indicator if the business entitysdnet report
earnings) at each subsequent reporting date. Tiheafae option: (a) may be applied instrument hstiument, with
a few exceptions, such as investments otherwiseuated for by the equity method; (b) is irrevocafuleless a new
election date occurs); and (c) is applied only tatire instruments and not to portions of instrursent
Statement 159 is effective as of the beginningroéatity’s first fiscal year that begins after Navger 15, 2007.
The Company is currently evaluating the impacanf, that FASB Statement No. 159 may have on thepgany’s
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No(rB¥ised 2007)Business Combinationghich replaced
Statement No. 141. Statement No. 141R retainguh&amental requirements of Statement No. 141 réxises
certain principles, including the definition of aidiness combination, the recognition and measureofeassets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business auatibn, the accounting for goodwill, and financihtement
disclosure. This statement is effective for anmeliods beginning after December 15, 2008. Thmgmy is
evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of FAS&tement No. 141R will have on the Company's obaated
financial statements.

NOTE 2: AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
The amortized cost and estimated fair value oflalghd-for-sale securities are as follows:

December 31, 2007

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In treaunds)
U.S. Government sponsored agencies $ 74,969 $ 985 % (1) $ 75,953
State and political subdivisions 210 - - 021
Equity and other securities 718 - (10 708
$ 75,897 $ 0985 $ (1) $ 76,871

December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In treaunds)
U.S. Government sponsored agencies $ 86,475 $ 65 $ (375 $ 86,165
State and political subdivisions 360 - - 036
Equity and other 718 - (37 681
$ 87,553 $ 65 $ (412 $ 87,206
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 2: AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (Continued)
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of lakké-for-sale securities at December 31, 2007, by

contractual maturity are shown below. Expectedunitéds will differ from contractual maturities bagse issuers
may have the right to call or prepay obligationthvair without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)
Due in one year or less $ 7,710 $ 7,737
Due after one through five years 49,183 49,714

Due after five years 18,286 18,712
Total 75,179 76,163
Equity and other securities 718 708
$ 75,897 $ 76,871

The book value and estimated fair value of seasritledged as collateral to secure public depasitsunted to
$10,998,000 and $11,152,000 at December 31, 200%21 993,000 and $30,916,000 at December 31, 2006.

The Company enters into sales of securities ungexements to repurchase. The amounts depositegt und
these agreements represent short-term borrowirdysusnreflected as a liability in the consolidabedance sheets.
The securities underlying the agreements are batk-eecurities. During the period, securitiesdhal safekeeping
were pledged to the depositors under a writtenodist agreement that explicitly recognizes the d@pos’ interest
in the securities. At December 31, 2007, or at moyth end during the period, no material amouragrEements
to repurchase securities sold was outstanding anthindividual entity. Information on sales of saties under
agreements to repurchase is as follows:

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Balance as of December 31 $27,956  $28,574
Carrying value of securities pledged to secureeagemts to repurchases
at December 31 $47,657 $40,309
Average balance during the year of securities solter agreements to repurchase $29,873  $24,499
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end duitiegyear $35,472  $34,052

Gross gains of $105,000, $0, and $0 were realime2DD7, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and no gasseb
were realized in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiyedy sales of available-for-sale securities.

Certain investments in debt and marketable equatyusties are reported in the financial statemexttan
amount less than their historical cost. Theseideglin fair value resulted primarily from increase market
interest rates. Based on evaluation of availatllerimation and evidence, particularly recent véitstin market
yields on debt securities, management believesl¢iaénes in fair value for these securities arepmrary. Should
the impairment of any of these become other thenpteary, the cost basis of the investment will duced and
the resulting loss recognized in net income inggod in which the other-than-temporary impairmisnritientified.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 2: AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (Continued)

Unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated bgsitmeent type and length of time that individualusiies

have been in a continuous unrealized loss positieras follows:

December 31, 2007

(In thousands)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total Total
Description of Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Securities Fair Value  Losses Fair Value  Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Government sponsored
agencies $ - $ -$ 2499 % 1$ 24998 1
State and political subdivisions - - - - - -
Equity and other securities - - 708 10 708 10
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ - $ - $ 3207 % 11$ 3207 % 11
December 31, 2006
(In thousands)
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total Total
Description of Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Securities Fair Value  Losses Fair Value  Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Government sponsored
agencies $ 37855 % 134 36,251 $ 241%$ 74,106 $ 375
State and political subdivisions - - - - - -
Equity and other securities - - 681 37 681 37
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 37,855 $ 134 $§ 36,932 $ 278 $ 74,787 $ 412
NOTE 3: LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Categories of loans at December 31, 2007 and 2aéde the following:
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Commercial loans $ 139,120 $ 110,849
Commercial real estate loans 150,655 126,952
Construction loans 188,229 171,709
Lease financing 19,724 18,512
Residential real estate loans 37,511 34,988
Consumer loans 22,934 33,097
Home equity loans 38,473 32,408
Total loans 596,646 528,515
Less: Allowance for loan losses 8,982 6,106
Net loans $ 587,664 $ 522,409
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 3: LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (Conti nued)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was aofwes:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Balance, beginning of year $ 6,106 $ 6,704 $33,3
Provision charged to expense 2,855 1,255 230
Allowance of acquired company 360 - -
Losses charged off, net of recoveries

of $324,000, $207,000 and $269,000
for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively (339) (1,853) (859
Balance, end of year $ 8,982 $ 6,106 $ 6,704

Impaired loans totaled $24.4 million and $10.3 imill at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectivelth wi
related allowances for loan losses of $2.7 millaord $719,000, respectively. At December 31, 20Q¥ 2006,
accruing loans delinquent 90 days or more totalE8lZmillion and $5.9 million respectively. Noneagal loans
were $12.0 million and $973,000 at December 31720@ 2006, respectively.

Total interest income of $1.3 million, $728,000 &$ick42,000 was recognized on average impaired loéns
$17.3 million, $12.1 million and $10.4 million f&007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Included ia tbial is cash-
basis interest income of $49,000, $53,000 and $D5r8cognized on impaired loans on nonaccrual gu2ie07,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 4: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Major classifications of these assets are as fallow

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Land $ 4,885 $ 4,185
Building and improvements 15,626 14,749
Furniture and equipment 7,183 6,604
Land improvements, net 285 285

27,979 25,823
Less accumulated depreciation 9,201 7,870
Total premises and equipment $ 18,778 $ 17,953
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 5: CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The carrying basis and accumulated amortizatiar@dgnized intangible assets at December 31, 8667
2006 were:

2007 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(In thousands)
Core Deposit Intangible $ 3286 $ (2,165) $ 2,286 $ (1,905)

Amortization expense for the years ended Decei®begP007 and 2006, was $260,000 and $152,000,
respectively. Estimated amortization expense &heof the following five years is:

(In thousands)

2008 $ 295
2009 219
2010 143
2011 143
2012 143

NOTE 6: INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

Interest-bearing time deposits in denomination$1§f0,000 or more were $139,052,000 on Decembe2®X7,
and $165,278,000 on December 31, 2006. The Compaquires brokered deposits in the normal course of
business. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, brokeepdsits of $31,471,000 and $31,771,000, respegtivedre
included in the Company’s time deposit balance.

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturitiegd tleposits are as follows:

(In thousands)

2008 $ 179,375
2009 49,117
2010 11,061
2011 5,071
2012 4,681
2013 and thereafter 1,152

$ 250,457

F-17



BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 7: OPERATING LEASES
Blue Valley Building Corp. leases office space thews under noncancellable operating leases egpinn

various years through 2012. Minimum future remereable under noncancellable operating leasege¢@ber 31,
2007 was as follows:

(In thousands)

2008 322
2009 120
2010 88
2011 78
2012 65

$ 673

The Company leases space from others under opgrigases expiring in 2010. Consolidated rental and
operating lease expenses were $35,000, $0 and(B#,@007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Comead no
leased space from others during 2006. Minimumalestmmitments payable under operating leases e¢reer
31, 2007 was as follows:

(In thousands)

2008 45
2009 45
2010 19

$ 109

NOTE 8: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Taxes currently payable $ 3,409 $ 3,939 $2,6
Deferred income taxes (1,134) 260 149
$ 2,275 $4,19 $ 2,764

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the staturate to the Company’s actual income tax expess
shown below:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Computed at the statutory rate (34%) $ 2,299 ™3, $ 2,493
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Tax-exempt interest (28) (32) (54)

State income taxes 200 251 232

Other (196) 187 93
Actual tax provision $ 2,275 $ 4,199 $ 2,764
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 8: INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The tax effects of temporary differences relatedeerred taxes shown on the December 31, 20072686
consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

2007 2006

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 3,279 $2,343
Accumulated depreciation on available-for-

sale securities - 139
Deferred compensation 171 41
Offering costs 123 241
Nonaccrual loan interest 52 -
Net Operating Loss carried from Unison Bapco
Inc. and subsidiary acquisition 77 -
Other 129 693

3,939 3,457
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated depreciation (465) (503)
FHLBank stock basis (464) (380)
Accumulated appreciation on available-for-

sale securities (394) -
Prepaid intangibles (168) (157)
Core Deposit Intangible related to Unison
Bancorp Inc. and subsidiary acquisition (304) -
Other (61) (141)

(1,859 (1,183
Net deferred tax asset $ 2,083 $2,276
NOTE 9: SHORT TERM DEBT
Short-term debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006 stedsof the following components:
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Federal Home Loan Bank advance (A) $ 25,000 $ -
JP Morgan Chase operating line of credit (B) - -
Total short-term debt $ 25,000 $ -
(A) Payable on demand; collateralized by variousetss including mortgage-backed loans. The

variable interest rate was 4.67% on December 317.20

(B) Line of credit matures May 31, 2008; collateradl by stock in the Company’s subsidiary bank.
The line of credit bears a variable interest rdtdhe Federal Funds rate plus 1.63%.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 10: LONG TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006 dedsef the following components:

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Note payable — Ban Corp (A) $ 2,781 $ 3,381
Note payable — Blue Valley Building Corp. (B) 6,037 6,550
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (C) 52,500 37,500
Subordinated Debentures — BVBC Capital Trust 1l (D) 7,732 7,732
Subordinated Debentures — BVBC Capital Trust 1)l (E 11,856 11,856
Total long-term debt $ 80,906 $ 67,019
(A) Due in December 2012, payable in quarterlyahistents of principal plus interest at the Federal

(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)

Funds Rate plus 1.63%; collateralized by commookstd the Company’s subsidiary bank. The
interest rate on this note has been fixed at 5.8%%e use of a swap agreement (see Note 11).

Two notes due in 2017; payable in monthly ilistants totaling $70,084 including interest at
5.19%; collateralized by land, buildings, and assignt of future rents. This debt is guaranteed
by the Company.

Due in 2008, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2015 and 20b@iateralized by various assets including
mortgage-backed loans. The interest rates on tivanges range from 2.62% to 5.682%.
Federal Home Loan Bank advance availability is weileed quarterly and at December 31,
2007, approximately $40,202,000 was available.

Due in 2033; interest only at LIBOR + 3.25% daearterly; fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by the Company on a subordinated lm#ie textent that the funds are held by the
Trust. The Company may prepay the subordinateérttakes beginning in 2008, in whole or in
part, at their face value plus accrued interest.

Due in 2035; interest only at LIBOR + 1.60% dgearterly; fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by the Company on a subordinated lmatie textent that the funds are held by the
Trust. Subordinated to the trust preferred seesrifD) due in 2033. The Company may prepay
the subordinated debentures beginning in 2010, holevor in part, at their face value plus
accrued interest.

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt atddeber 31, 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands)

2008 $ 11,140
2009 1,169
2010 1,199
2011 8,731
2012 16,046
Thereafter 42,621

$ 80,906
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 11: DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As a strategy to reduce the exposure to the risthahges in future cash flows due to interestfiattuations,
the Company entered into an interest rate swapeaggnt for a portion of its floating rate debt (déme 10). The
agreement provides for the Company to receiveastdrom the counterparty at an amount which offtie¢ note’s
variable rate and to pay interest to the countéypra fixed rate of 5.45% on the notional amowver the term of
the note. Under the agreement, the Company payeceives the net interest amount quarterly, withduarterly
settlements included in interest expense.

Management has designated the interest rate swapragnt as a cash flow hedging instrument. Thegéded
was fully effective through December 31, 2007. 20000 unrealized loss has been recognized as par@nt of
other comprehensive income (loss) in 2007.

NOTE 12: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank are subject to variouslatmyy capital requirements administered by federa
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capigjuirements can initiate certain mandatory andsipts
additional discretionary actions by regulators thhtundertaken, could have a direct material dffen the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adey guidelines and the regulatory framework foonppot
corrective action, the Company and the Bank musétnspecific capital guidelines that involve quaathite
measures of assets, liabilities and certain of&ihed sheet items as calculated under regulatopuatiog practices.
The capital amounts and classification are alsgestibo qualitative judgments by the regulatorsulmmponents,
risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulaticensure capital adequacy require the Company anBah&
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set fontthie table below). Management believes, as oebber 31,
2007, that the Company and the Bank meet all dagaitequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notificafrom the FDIC categorized the Bank as well-cdizied
under the regulatory framework for prompt correetaction. To be categorized as well-capitalized,Bank must
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-bdgmd Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in tideta There are
no conditions or events since that notificatiort thanagement believes have changed the Bank’'sargteg
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 12: REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued)
The Company and the Bank’s actual capital amourdsratios are also presented in the table.

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2007: (In thousands)
Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated $80,075 11.53% $55,545 8.00% N/A

Bank Only $73,947 10.89% $54,329  8.00% $67,911 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated $71,392 10.28% $27,773  4.00% N/A

Bank Only $65,452 9.64% $27,165 4.00% $40,747  6.00%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets)

Consolidated $71,392 9.86% $28,953  4.00% N/A

Bank Only $65,452 9.23% $28,360 4.00% $35,450 5.00%

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt
For Capital Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2006: (In thousands)
Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated $78,350 12.47% $50,194  8.00% N/A

Bank Only $73,225 11.95% $49,007 8.00% $61,259 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated $71,216 11.33% $25,097 4.00% N/A

Bank Only $67,119 10.96% $24,503  4.00% $36,755 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets)

Consolidated $71,216 10.29% $27,559  4.00% N/A

Bank Only $67,119 9.91% $27,081  4.00% $33,851 5.00%

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on #imounts of dividends that it may declare withoubipr
regulatory approval. At December 31, 2007, appnately $4,985,000 of retained earnings were awvailédr
dividend declaration without prior regulatory apyab
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 13: TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company hadsloatstanding to executive officers, directors &md

companies in which the Bank’s executive officerslivectors were principal owners, in the amount$21,288,000
and $10,773,000, respectively. Related party &retitns for 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Balance, beginning of year $ 10,773 $ 12,258
New loans 19,035 7,651
Repayments and reclassifications (9,520) (9,136)
Balance, end of year $ 20,288 $ 10,773

In management’s opinion, such loans and other siies of credit and deposits were made in the argin
course of business and were made on substanti@lgame terms (including interest rates and codigtas those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactiwaith other persons. Further, in management’s opinthese loans
did not involve more than the normal risk of colibility or present other unfavorable features.

NOTE 14: PROFIT SHARING AND 401(K) PLANS

The Company'’s profit sharing and 401(k) plans caudrstantially all employees. Contributions to pinefit
sharing plan are determined annually by the Boafdiectors, and participant interests are vesteer @ five-year
period. The Company’s 401(k) plan permits partcifs to make contributions by salary reductiongtdasn which
the Company matches a ratable portion. The Compamgtching contributions to the 401(k) plan aretegs
immediately. Combined Company contributions chargedexpense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $782,000,
$743,000 and $698,000, respectively.

NOTE 15: EQUITY INCENTIVE COMPENSATION

The Company has an Equity Incentive Plan (the “Blarich allows the Company to issue equity inceati
compensation awards to its employees and direttahe forms of stock options, restricted sharedederred share
units.

Under the fixed option provisions of the Plan, @@mpany may grant options for shares of commorkstuat
vest two years from the date of grant to its empésy. At December 31, 2007, the Company had 291sf@res
available to be granted (options granted prior 8L were subject to an earlier plan with similamnts). The

exercise price of each option is intended to etjualfair value of the Company’s stock on the ddtgrant, and
maximum terms are 10 years.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company grantestoxk options, but did grant 13,600, 0 and 12,4G0es
of restricted common stock, respectively. Recigiesf the restricted stock grant who are employess in the
stock after three years from the date of the gré&ecipients of the restricted stock grant whodirectors vest in
the stock after one year from the date of the grdrite non vested shares were 18,000, 10,800, &3 as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelye ¢Ost basis of the restricted shares granted) éojtlae fair
value of the Company’s stock on the date of graiit,be amortized to compensation expense ratablyr dhe
applicable vesting period. The amount of unrecogghicompensation costs was $230,200, $162,8005&4%®|000
as of December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respbctiiuring 2007, 2006 and 2005, 2,025, 2,400 a®@2 shares
of restricted stock were forfeited, respectively.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 15: EQUITY INCENTIVE COMPENSATION (Continued)

A summary of the status of option shares undempthr at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and ekang
during the years then ended, is presented below:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 84,300 $19.11 111,400 $ 18.38 155,000 $17.80
Exercised (15,425) 15.42 (27,100) 16.12  41,425) 16.00
Forfeited (2,550) 25.00 — - (2,17% 22.47
Outstanding, end of year 66,325  $19.73 84,300 $19.11 111,400 $18.38
Options exercisable, end of year 66,325 $19.73 84,300 $19.11 111,400 $18.38

The weighted-average remaining contractual lifeopfion shares at December 31, 2007 was 3.74 years.
Exercise prices ranged from $7.50 to $25.00. In&grom about options outstanding and exercisabte &ecember
31, 2007 is set forth in the following table.

Options Outstanding and Exercisable
Exercise Number Outstanding and Weighted Average Weighted Average
Prices  Exercisable at 12/31/07 Remaining Contractual Life  Exercise Price

$11.25 2,800 1 vyear $11.25
14.38 6,500 2 years 14.38
16.50 13,550 3 years 16.50
19.50 23,000 4 years 19.50
25.00 20,475 5 vyears 25.00
66,325

NOTE 16: EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The 2004 Blue Valley Ban Corp. employee stock pasehplan (“ESPP”) provides the right to subscribe t
100,000 shares of common stock to substantiallgraployees of the Company and subsidiaries, exbege who
are 5% or greater shareholders of the Company. pihehase price for shares under the plan is detethby the
Company’s Board of Directors (or a designated Comemithereof) and was set to 85% of the markeepiteither
the grant date or the offering date, whichevemisdr, for the plan year beginning in February, 20@®xpense
associated with the plan recognized in 2007 and62@fs approximately $17,000 and $19,000, respegtive
Information about employee stock purchase planviagtas of December 31, 2007 and 2006 is set fortthe
following table.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan Activity

Plan year ending January Shares purchased Purehase
2007 4,558 $25.50
2006 4,073 $19.55
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 17: OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE

Other income consists of the following:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Rental income $ 481 $ 459 $ 365
Other income 624 885 1,362
Total $ 1,105 $ 1344 $ 1,727
Other operating expenses consist of the following:
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Advertising $ 998 $ 1,080 $ 1,413
Loan processing fees 484 904 232
Data processing 1,077 889 863
Professional fees 1,271 631 790
Other expense 3,617 3,074 3,543
Total $ 7,447 $ 6,578 $ 6,841

NOTE 18: DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were use@stimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For these short-term instruments, the carrying arhapproximates fair value.

Available-for-Sale Securities

Fair values for available-for-sale securities, whadso are the amounts recognized in the consetidaalance
sheets, equal quoted market prices if availablequbted market prices are not available, fair galare estimated
based on quoted market prices of similar securities

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

For homogeneous categories of loans, such as ngerigans held for sale, fair value is estimatechgishe
guoted market prices for securities backed by sinhdlans, adjusted for differences in loan charésttes.

Loans

The fair value of loans is estimated by discountimgfuture cash flows using the current ratestathvsimilar
loans would be made to borrowers with similar dredtings and for the same remaining maturitiesarisowith
similar characteristics were aggregated for purpadethe calculations. The carrying amount of aedrinterest
approximates its fair value.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, Federal Reserve Bank Stock, and other securities

The carrying amounts for these securities approbarnieir fair value.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 18: DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Deposits

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accoIN@V accounts and certain money market depositseis
amount payable on demand at the reporting date tfi@r carrying amount). The fair value of fixeghturity time
deposits is estimated using a discounted cashdbdoulation that applies the rates currently offiefer deposits of
similar remaining maturities. The carrying amoahaccrued interest payable approximates its e

Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase and Other I nterest-Bearing Liabilities

For these short-term instruments, the carrying arhsua reasonable estimate of fair value.

Short-Term and Long-Term Debt

Rates currently available to the Company for delth wimilar terms and remaining maturities are ugsed
estimate fair value of existing debt.

Commitments to Extend Credit, L etters of Credit and Lines of Credit

The fair value of commitments is estimated using files currently charged to enter into similar agrents,
taking into account the remaining terms of the agrents and the present creditworthiness of thetecparties.
For fixed rate loan commitments, fair value alsasiders the difference between current levels @frést rates and
the committed rates. The fair value of lettersciadit and lines of credit is based on fees culyertiarged for
similar agreements or on the estimated cost toitere or otherwise settle the obligations with ¢benterparties at
the reporting date.

The following table presents estimated fair valaeshe Company’s financial instruments. The fafues of
certain of these instruments were calculated byadisting expected cash flows, which involves sigaift
judgments by management and uncertainties. Fairevis the estimated amount at which financial @sse
liabilities could be exchanged in a current tratisacbetween willing parties, other than in a fataa liquidation
sale. Because no market exists for certain ofetfiegncial instruments, and because managemestrdmédntend
to sell these financial instruments, the Compangsdnot know whether the fair values shown beloweasgnt
values at which the respective financial instrureeniuld be sold individually or in the aggregate.
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BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

NOTE 18: DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets: (In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,139 $ 18,139 ¥,23Q $ 27,230
Available-for-sale securities 76,871 76,871 87,206 87,206
Mortgage loans held for sale 10,978 10,978 1,8@5 21,805
Interest receivable 4,621 4,621 4,200 @,20
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 587,664 590,500 522,409 516,011
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, Federal
Reserve Bank stock, and other securities 7,043 7,043 6,447 6,447

Financial liabilities:
Deposits 536,370 537,412 535,864 535,643
Securities Sold Under Agreement to
Repurchase and Other Interest-Bearing

Liabilities 29,036 29,036 29,558 29,558
Short-term debt 25,000 25,000 - -
Long-term debt 80,906 81,963 67,019 64,702
Interest payable 2,459 2,459 2,053 2,053

Unrecognized financial instruments
(net of amortization):
Commitments to extend credit - — — _
Letters of credit - — — _
Lines of credit - — - _
Forward commitments - — - _

NOTE 19: COMMITMENTS AND CREDIT RISKS

The Company extends credit for commercial realtestaortgages, residential mortgages, working chpita
financing and consumer loans to businesses andergsiprincipally in southern Johnson County. Bhaek also
purchases indirect leases from various leasing emmp throughout Kansas and Missouri.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to tera customer as long as there is no violatiomrof
condition established in the contract. Commitmeygserally have fixed expiration dates or othemteation
clauses and may require a payment of a fee. Simartion of the commitments may expire withoutigedrawn
upon, the total commitment amounts do not necdgsegpresent future cash requirements. Each custem
creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-cass.bd$ie amount of collateral obtained, if deemedessary, is
based on management's credit evaluation of the tegpaaty. Collateral held varies, but may incluaxounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equiptheommercial real estate and residential reat@sta

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company hadamaing commitments to originate loans aggregating
approximately $31,074,000 and $38,025,000, respagti The commitments extend over varying periofiime
with the majority being disbursed within a one-ypariod.

Mortgage loans in the process of origination repmésmounts that the Company plans to fund withiornal
period of 60 to 90 days and which are intended#&be to investors in the secondary market.
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NOTE 19: COMMITMENTS AND CREDIT RISKS (Continued)

Forward commitments to sell mortgage loans aregabibns to deliver loans at a specified price obefore a
specified future date. The Bank acquires such cioments to reduce market risk on mortgage loarthénprocess
of origination and mortgage loans held for sale.

Total mortgage loans in the process of originaiorounted to $3,048,000 and $14,041,000 and morigags
held for sale amounted to $10,978,000 and $21,80582 December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectivelyatee!
forward commitments to sell mortgage loans amoutdexpproximately $14,027,000 and $35,846,000 aebDber
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Mortgage loarthénprocess of origination represent commitmemtsriginate
loans at both fixed and variable rates.

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issu®y the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Those guarantees aimaply issued to support public and private borimogv
arrangements, including commercial paper, bondnfimay and similar transactions. The credit riskolned in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the saméhat involved in extending loans to customers.

The Company had total outstanding letters of cratibunting to $9,280,000 and $15,498,000 at Decefithe
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a cust@wéong as there is no violation of any conditastablished
in the contract. Lines of credit generally haveefl expiration dates. Since a portion of the lirey expire without
being drawn upon, the total unused lines do noesesarily represent future cash requirements. Eastomer’s
creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-cass.bd$ie amount of collateral obtained, if deemedessary, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the tegpauty. Collateral held varies, but may includzants
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipthecommercial real estate and residential real t@sta
Management uses the same credit policies in grafitias of credit as it does for on-balance shesttuments.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, unused lines ofitckeatrowings aggregated approximately $202,380,000
and $187,066,000, respectively.

Additionally, the Company periodically has excassds, which are loaned to other banks as fedenalisfgold.
At December 31, 2007 there were no federal funtislzmlances. At December 31, 2006 federal funét$ tedaling
$5,375,000 were loaned to various banks, as apgroy¢he Board of Directors, with the largest bataat any one
bank being $5,375,000 on that date.
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NOTE 20: SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudi ted)
The following table presents the unaudited resaoftoperations for the past two years by quarteree S

discussion on earnings per share in "Note 1: Matbfr Operations and Summary of Significant Accaumti
Policies" in the Company's Consolidated FinanctateSnents.

2007 2006
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data)

Interest income $ 12,713% 13,143 $ 13,605 $ 12,756 $ 12,827 $ 12,647 $ 12,031 $ 11,327
Interest expense 6,297 6,734 6,561 5,990 5,660 5,381 5,194 4,727
Net interest income 6,416 6,409 7,044 6,766 7,167 7,266 6,837 6,600
Provision for loan losses 1,865 590 - 400 50 540 590 75

Net interest income after provision
for loan losses $ 4551 5819 $ 7,044 $ 6,366 $ 7117 $ 6,72¢ $ 6247 $ 6,525
Noninterest income 1,636 1,761 1,806 1,997 2,346 2,364 2,139 2,032
Noninterest expense 5,474 5,848 6,311 6,584 6,094 5,880 5,954 6,446
Income before income taxes 713 1,732 2,539 1,779 3,369 3,210 2,432 2,111
Income taxes (1) 35 646 979 615 1,270 1,219 916 794
Net income $ 678% 1,086 $ 1560 $ 1,164 $ 2099 % 1991 $ 1516 $ 1,317

Net Income per Share Data

Basic $ 0.28 % 045 $ 0.65 $ 0.48 $ 0.89 $ 0.8 $ 0.6: $ 0.5¢

Diluted $ 0.28 % 0.44 $ 0.64 $ 0.48 $ 0.8 $ 0.8: $ 0.6: $ 0.5¢
Balance Sheet

Total assets $ 736,213% 730,449 $738,187 $ 739,864 $692,21¢ $684,93t $675,18¢ $ 705,68:

Total loans, net 587,664 554,161 547,405 552,288 522,40¢ 527,86« 515,922 522,492

Stockholders' equity 58,934 58,788 56,887 55,419 53,82( 52,195 49,437 47,742

(1) Income taxes were adjusted in tfe@uarter to correct the effective rate taken dutirgprevious quarters
in 2007.

The above unaudited financial information refleats adjustments that are, in the opinion of managm
necessary to present a fair statement of the sesfutiperations for the interim periods presented.

NOTE 21: BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On February 16, 2007, the Company acquired 100%eobutstanding common stock of Unison Bancorp, Inc
(“Unison”) and its subsidiary, Western National Basf Lenexa, Kansas (“Western”) for $10,180,00€#&sh and
merged Unison into the Company. On March 29, 2@8F,Company sold Western to Northland NationallBan
Kansas City, Missouri, and simultaneously the Comyfmisubsidiary, Bank of Blue Valley, purchased #ssets
and assumed the liabilities of Western, with theegtion of the bank charter and some miscellanesssts and
received $392,000 cash as a net result. As atrebthe acquisition, the Company will have an oppuoity to
continue its expansion in Johnson County and gpsasents its first presence in Lenexa. Theiltestioperations
have been included in the consolidated financakstents since February 16, 2007.
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NOTE 21: BUSINESS ACQUISITION (Continued)

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduahéhe

date of acquisition.

(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,134
Available-for-sale securities 1,594
Loans 29,200
Premises and equipment 1,508
Core deposits intangible 1,000
Western National Bank charter - intangible 325
Goodwill 4,531
Other assets 1,660
Total assets 43,952
Deposits 31,241
Other interest-bearing liabilities 903
Long-term debt 650
Other liabilities 874
Total liabilities assumed 33,668
Net assets acquired $ 10,284

The Company acquired identifiable intangibles whicimsisted of the core deposit base of $1,000,66&h
has a useful life of approximately seven years iartteing amortized using the straight-line methad the bank
charter, which was subsequently sold to Northlardidsial Bank on March 29, 2007. Since the transactvas
structured as a stock acquisition the tax baséiseofssets and liabilities carried over from thguaree. As a result,
the $1,000,000 core deposit intangible and $4,%81 @f goodwill are not considered deductible forame tax
purposes.

F-30



BLUE VALLEY BAN CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
NOTE 22: CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (PARENT C OMPANY ONLY)

Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,261 $ 922
Investments in subsidiaries:
Bank of Blue Valley 71,988 67,619
Blue Valley Building Corp. 8,437 8,141
BVBC Capital Trust Il 232 232
BVBC Capital Trust Il 356 356
Other assets 374 704
Total Assets $ 82,648 $ 77,974
LIABILITIES
Long-term debt $ 2,781 $ 3,381
Subordinated debentures 19,588 19,588
Other liabilities 1,345 1,185
Total Liabilities 23,714 24,154
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock 2,440 2,409
Additional paid-in capital 10,312 9,561
Retained earnings 45,592 41,982
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of iretar (credits) of $394
and $(88) at 2007 and 2006, respectively 590 (132)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 58,934 53,820
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 82&%4 $ 77,974
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NOTE 22: CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (PARENT C OMPANY ONLY)
(Continued)

Condensed Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Income
Dividends from subsidiaries $ 12,495 $ 2,104 $ 52
Other income 15 65 64
12,510 2,169 116
Expenses 2,174 2,252 2,572
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in
undistributed net income of subsidiaries 10,336 (83) (2,456)
Credit for income taxes (818 (729 (835
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed nebime of
subsidiaries 11,154 646 (1,621)
Equity in undistributed (distributions in exces$ oét (6,666) 6,277 6,190
income of subsidiaries
Net income $ 4,488 $ 6,923 $ 4,569
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NOTE 22:
(Continued)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Items not requiring (providing) cash:
Deferred income taxes
Equity in undistributeddistributions in excess ¢
net income of subsidiaries
Restricted stock earned
Changes in:
Other assets
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributed to subsidiary
Purchase of Unison Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary
Proceeds from sale of assets and liabilities o$téta
National Bank
Sale of Western National Bank charter
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of long-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt
Dividends paid on common stock
Proceeds from sale of common stock
Net cash used in financing activities

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF YEAR
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2007
$ 4,488

(42)
6,666

316

255
52

11,735
(5,764)
(10,284)
5,834
325
(9.889)
(1,250)

(723)
466

(1,507)

339
922

$ 1,261

2006

(In thousands)

$ 6,923

(2,982)
(6,277)

485

5,866
(3.399

616

(600)
(596;
538
658
(42)

964

$ 922

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (PARENT C OMPANY ONLY)

2005

$ 4,569

835
(6,190)

301

(1,515)
1,089

(911)

(12)

_ (12
12,375)
11,856
813

171
(1,094)
2,058

$ 964



